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Directors’ Report
TO THE MEMBERS

The Directors present their 47th Report together with Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
31st March, 2020.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

Rs./Lakhs Rs./Lakhs
2019-20 2018-19

Revenue from Operations & Other Income 55,202 53,090
-------------------- --------------------

Profit before Finance cost, Depreciation & amortisation and Tax 2528 2808
Less: Finance Cost 840 788

-------------------- --------------------
Profit before Depreciation & amortisation and Tax 1688 2020
Less: Depreciation & amortisation Expenses 811 683

-------------------- --------------------
Profit /(Loss) before Tax 877 1337

Tax Expenses (credit/ (net)
- Current Tax 213 295
- Earlier year Tax expenses 7 17
- MAT Credit recognition (515) (322)
- Deferred Tax 333 323
Total Tax Expenses / (Credit) 38 313

-------------------- --------------------
Profit /Loss for the period 839 1024

-------------------- --------------------
Other Comprehensive income 1 (15)

-------------------- --------------------
Transferred to General Reserves 840 1009

-------------------- --------------------

2. OPERATIONS

During the period under Report, the Company’s sales and other income are Rs.55,202/- lakhs and cash profit is Rs.1,688/
- lakhs as compared to last year’s figures of Rs.53,090/- lakhs and cash profit of Rs.2,020/- lakhs respectively. After
depreciation and amortisation, the profit for the year is Rs.877/- lakhs as compared to the previous year profit of Rs. 1,337/
- lakhs respectively.

3. DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of your Company proposes to retain the profits for use in the business expansion programs.
Accordingly, no dividend is recommended by the Directors.

4. FIXED DEPOSITS

The details relating to Deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Act:

(a) Accepted during the year - Nil;

(b) There were 6 unpaid/unclaimed fixed deposits with the Company amounting to Rs.1.50 Lakhs as at the end of the
year;

(c) There has not been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year.

5. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the year under review, M/s. MFL Trading Private Limited continues to be the wholly owned subsidiary company of
the Company.

In compliance with provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has prepared consolidated
financial statements as per the Accounting Standards on Consolidated Financial Statements issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. The audited consolidated financial statements along with the Auditors’ Report thereon
forms part of this Annual Report.

During the year, the Board of Directors (the Board) has reviewed the affairs of the Subsidiary. Further, a statement containing
the salient features of the financial statements of subsidiary in the prescribed format AOC-1 is appended as “Annexure 1”
to the Board’s Report.
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In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statements, including the consolidated
financial statements and related information of the Company and audited financial statements of its subsidiary, are available
on the Company’s website at www.milkfoodltd.com.

The Company has no material subsidiary company but in order to comply with the Listing Regulations, the Company has
adopted a Policy on Material Subsidiary Companies and has uploaded on the Company’s website at www.milkfoodltd.com.

6. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the period under review, the Company has not made any loan, guarantee or investment in terms of provisions of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

7. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

The outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activities globally. The
nationwide lockdown ordered by the Government of India has resulted in further slow-down in economic activities and
also the business operations of the Company in terms of sales and production. The management has considered the
possible effects that may result from the pandemic on the recoverability/carrying value of the assets. Based on the current
indicators of future economic conditions and company engaged in dairy business (essential services), the management
expects to recover the carrying amount of the assets, however the management will and continue to closely monitor any
material changes to future economic conditions.

There is no change in the nature of the Company’s business during the year under review.

8. DIRECTORS

Mr. Harmesh Mohan Sood, Director (DIN: 07951620) retires by rotation and, being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment
as the Director of the Company. The Board recommends his re-appointment.

Further, the Board also recommends his appointment as Whole Time Director of the Company.

Mr. Kewal Krishan Kohli and Mr. Anil Girotra were appointed as the Additional Directors of the Company in the category of
Non Executive Independent Directors and Mr. Lalit Kumar was appointed as the Additional Director in the category of Non
Executive Non Independent Director of the Company in the in the Board meeting held on 13th February, 2020.

Appropriate resolutions seeking your approval for their re-appointment are included in the Notice.

Mrs. Gita Bawa and Mrs. Asha Gadi continue to hold the office as the Independent Directors of the Company and Mrs.
Preeti Mathur continues to be Non Executive Non Independent Director of the Company.

Profile and other information of the aforesaid Directors, as required under Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard - 2 are annexed in the Notice of Annual General
Meeting.

9. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE

All the Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

10. FORMAL LETTER OF APPOINTMENT TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has issued the formal letter of appointment to all the independent directors in the manner as provided under
the Companies Act, 2013 and the terms and conditions of their appointment have been disclosed on the website of the
Company at www.milkfoodltd.com.

11. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, Eleven Board meetings and One separate meeting of the Independent Directors were
convened and held. The details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the
meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

12. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMMES FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has a policy of conducting familiarization programmes for Independent Directors in order to familiarize them
with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company and nature of the industry in which the Company
operates etc. The details of such Policy have been given on the website of the Company at www.milkfoodltd.com.

13. COMMITTEES

As per the provisions of Section 177, 178 and 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has constituted an Audit Committee, Nomination &
Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The
Composition of these Committees and details of their meetings are given in the Corporate Governance Report.
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14. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

a) Mr. Sudhir Avasthi, Chief Executive Officer

b) Mr. Sanjeev Kothiala, Chief Financial Officer

c) Mr. Rakesh Kumar Thakur, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

15. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3) (c) read with Section 134 (5) of the Act, your Directors confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2020, the applicable Accounting Standards have
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of
the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts of the Company on a going concern basis;

(e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

16. CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL

There was no change in the Share Capital of the company during the financial year 2019-20.

17. AUDITORS

17.1 STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Members at the 44th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on 26th September, 2017 had appointed
M/s V. P. Jain & Associates, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration Number 015260N), as the statutory
Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of five years i.e. from the conclusion of the said AGM until the
conclusion of the 49th AGM to be held in the year 2022, subject to ratification of their appointment by the members
of the Company at every subsequent AGM of the Company.

In accordance with the Companies Amendment Act, 2017, enforced on 7th May, 2018 by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the appointment of Statutory Auditors is not required to be ratified at every Annual General Meeting. In view
of the same, the matter for ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company, has not been included
in the notice of the ensuing AGM.

17.2 AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualifications/reservation or adverse remarks. Notes to accounts are self
explanatory and form an integral part of Financial Statements.

17.3 SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with corresponding Rules framed
thereunder, Ms. Kamlesh Gupta, Company Secretary has been appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company
to carry out the Secretarial Audit of secretarial and related records of the Company for the financial year ended on
March 31, 2020.

A Secretarial Audit Report submitted by the Secretarial Auditors in Form No. MR-3 forms part of this report and is
annexed herewith as “Annexure-2”.

As per the remarks given by the Secretarial Audiotrs relating to the non compliance of Clause 31(A) of the SEBI
LODR, 2015 relating to the reclassification of promoter and promoter group’s entities, Directors give their explanations
as follows:

Two Promoter Group Companies namely M/s Blue Skies Investments Pvt. Ltd. and M/s. Snowhite Holdings Pvt. Ltd.
intimated the Company through a letter dated 15th September, 2019 that they no longer pertains to the Promoter
Group due to the change in their controlling interest. And therefore in the Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 26th September, 2019, these two companies cast their votes on two resolutions in which the promoters were
interested.
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Later on, the Board, to uphold the high standards of Corporate Governance, decided to withdraw the voting by
these two companies on these two resolutions and amended the voting results and Scrutinizer’s report accordingly.

The amended Scrutinizers’ Report dated 24th January, 2020 in respect of these two resolutions was filed at the BSE
& SEBI.

A Secretarial Compliance Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 on compliance of all applicable
SEBI Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, was obtained from Ms. Kamlesh Gupta, Company
Secretary, Secretarial Auditors, and submitted to the stock exchange.

17.4 INTERNAL AUDITORS

M/s Lalit Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi who were appointed as Internal Auditors for the year
2018-19, have shown inability to continue as an internal auditors of the Company. M/s. Pardeep Sharma & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, (Registration No. 029181N), Delhi have been appointed as internal auditor of the Company
for the financial year 2019-20 to perform the functions of internal audit of the Company.

17.5 COST AUDITORS

On the recommendations of Audit Committee, M/s R. J. Goel & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.000026)
have been appointed as the Cost Auditors to audit the cost accounts of the Company relating to Milk Powder for the
financial years 2020-21.

As required under the Companies Act, 2013, resolution seeking members’ approval for the ratification of remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditors forms part of the Notice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

18. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board on the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee has framed a Policy for the selection
and appointment of directors, key managerial personnel and also for determining the criteria of their remuneration. The
Remuneration Policy has been stated in the Corporate Governance Report and is uploaded on the Company’s website at
http://www.milkfoodltd.com/img/downloads/Milkfood_Nomination_Remuneration_Policy.pdf

19. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has formulated a Risk Management Policy. The
Company is aware of the risks associated with the business of the Company. It regularly analyses and takes corrective
actions for managing / mitigating the risks.

At present, the Company has not identified any element of risks which may threaten the existence of the Company.

20. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

In terms of the requirements of the Act and Listing Regulations, a separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the
performance of all the individual Directors on the Board who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement,
contribution and independence of judgment thereby safeguarding the interest of the Company. The performance evaluation
of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board (excluding the Directors being evaluated). The performance
evaluation of the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Board also carried out
annual performance evaluation of the working of its Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee as well
as the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Some of the key criteria for the performance evaluation are as follows –

Performance evaluation of Directors:

1. Attendance at the Board/Committee meetings.

2. Contribution at the Board/Committee meetings.

3. Guidance/support to management outside Board/Committee meetings.

Performance evaluation of Board and Committees:

1. Degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities.

2. Board Structure and Composition.

3. Quality of relationship between Board and Management.

4. Efficacy of communication with external shareholders.

5. Effectiveness of Board process, information and functioning.

21. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line in accordance with the requirements of the Sexual
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Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee
(ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual,
temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. No complaint has been received during the year under review.

22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The brief outline of the corporate social responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company and the initiatives undertaken by the
Company on CSR activities during the year are set out in “Annexure-3” of this report in the format prescribed in the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. For other details regarding the CSR Committee, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report, which is a part of this report. The policy is available on http://www.milkfoodltd.com/
img/downloads/Milkfood_Corporate_Social_Responsibility_Policy.pdf.

23. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A detailed Report on Corporate Governance forms an integral part of Annual Report and is set out as a separate section
therein. A certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary, regarding the compliances with the conditions of corporate
governance as stipulated in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 is annexed to the Directors’ Report.

24. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In terms of provisions of Regulation 34 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Management Discussion and Analysis Report have been given separately and forms
part of this Report.

25. INFORMATION UNDER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

The shares of your Company are listed at the BSE Ltd. vide Stock Code: 507621. The listing fee for the financial year 2020-
21 has been paid.

26. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo as stipulated
under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are
annexed herewith as “Annexure- 4”.

27. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in form MGT-9 is enclosed as “Annexure – 5” to this annual
report and also available on the website of the Company at www.milkfoodltd.com.

28. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required pursuant to Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, will be provided upon request. In terms of
Section 136 of the Act, the Report is being sent to all members and others entitled thereto, excluding the aforesaid
information and the said particulars are available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company
during the business hours on all the working days of the Company. The members interested in obtaining such particulars
may write to the Company Secretary.

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required u/s 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of the Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided as per “Annexure-
6”.

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions which were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and were in the
ordinary course of the business. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with
Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have potential conflict of interest with the
Company at large. A disclosure in form AOC-2 is annexed with this Report as “Annexure-7”.

All related party transactions have been disclosed in Note 33 to the Accounts.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and also the Board for approval. Omnibus approval
was obtained on a yearly basis for transactions which are of repetitive nature. The transactions entered into pursuant to
the omnibus approval so granted and a statement giving details of all Related Party Transactions are placed before the
Audit Committee for review on a quarterly basis.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website at http://
www.milkfoodltd.com/img/downloads/Milkfood_Policy_on_related_party_transactions.pdf
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30. GREEN INITIATIVES

In commitment to keep in line with the Green Initiative and going beyond it to create new green initiatives, electronic copy
of the Annual Report 2020 and Notice of the 47th AGM are being sent to all members whose email addresses are registered
with the Company /RTA/ Depository Participant(s). For members who have not registered their email addresses, physical
copies of the Annual Report 2020 and the Notice of the AGM are being sent by the permitted mode. Members requiring
physical copies can send a request to the Company Secretary.

The Annual Report 2020 is also available on our website, www.milkfoodltd.com.

31. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

Pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for the
prevention of insider trading with a view to regulate the trading in the securities of Company by the Directors and Designated
Employees of the Company on the basis of unpublished price sensitive information available to them by virtue of their
position in the Company.

The Code under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 is available on the website of the Company at
www.milkfoodltd.com.

32. VIGIL MECHANISM

In pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Vigil Mechanism for directors and
employees to report their genuine concerns such as unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud, violation of the Company’s
Code of Conduct, has been adopted. The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
http://www.milkfoodltd.com/img/downloads/Milkfood_WHISTLEBLOWER_POLICY.pdf

33. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Company has an adequate system of internal control to safeguard and protect from losses, unauthorized use or
disposition of its assets. All the transactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported to the Management. The
Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting
the financial statements. The Internal Auditor of the Company checks and verifies the internal control and monitors them
in accordance with the policy adopted by the Company.

34. COMPLIANCE WITH SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

The Company is fully compliant with the applicable mandatory requirements under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

35. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

During the financial year, your Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

36. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS:

There are no significant or material orders which were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the
going concern status and the Company’s Operations in future.

37. REPORTING OF FRAUD BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, none of the Auditors have reported to the Audit Committee or to the Board, under Section
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or employees.

38. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Company and its Board of Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance, support and
cooperation received from Government, regulatory authorities, stakeholders, customers, vendors, investors, financial
institutions, bankers and members during the year. We place on record our appreciation for the contribution made by our
employees at all levels. Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work, solidarity, cooperation and support.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : New Delhi Harmesh Mohan Sood Asha Gadi
Date : 20th July, 2020 Director Director

DIN:07951620 DIN:00110734
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Annexure - 1
Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Sl. No. Particulars Details

1. Name of the subsidiary MFL Trading Private Limited

2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 01/04/2019 to 31/03/2020
from the holding company’s reporting period

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of Rupees
the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries

4. Share capital 1,00,000

5. Reserves & surplus (1,94,381)

6. Total Assets -

7. Total Liabilities -

8. Investments -

9. Turnover -

10. Profit before taxation (25,648)

11. Provision for taxation -

12. Profit after taxation (25,648)

13. Proposed Dividend -

14. % of shareholding 100

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations. Nil

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. Nil

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013

related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures Not
Applicable

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end

No.

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture

Extend of Holding%

3. Description of how there is significant influence

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet

6. Profit/Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. Nil

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. Nil
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Annexure - 2
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(For the financial year ended 31st March, 2020)

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel ) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members
Milkfood Limited
P.O. Bahadurgarh
Distt. Patiala
Punjab

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by M/s Milkfood Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me
a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended 31st March, 2020, complied with statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliance- mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder:

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings – Not applicable during the reporting period
as the Company has not received any foreign direct investment and has not made any overseas investments and there are no
external commercial borrowings during the period under audit.

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI
Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of shares and Takeover) Regulations,2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 - Not
applicable as the Company has not issued any securities during the year under audit;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 - Not applicable as
the Company has not granted any Options to its employees during the year under audit;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 - Not applicable as
the Company has not issued any debt securities during the year under audit;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding
the Companies Act and dealing with client – Not applicable as the Company is not registered as a Registrar to an issue
and Share Transfer Agent during the year under audit;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares ) Regulations, 2009 – Not applicable as the
Company has not got delisted its equity shares from the Stock Exchange during the year under audit;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - Not applicable as the Company
has not bought back any of its securities during the year under audit.

(vi) Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs, as identified by the Management, that is to say:

(i) The Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 and the Rules & Regulations made thereunder.

For the compliances of Labour Laws & other General Laws, as applicable to the Company, my examination and reporting is based
on the documents, records and files as produced and shown to me and the information and explanations as provided to me, by the
officers and management of the Company and to the best of my judgment and understanding of the applicability of the different
enactments upon the Company, in my opinion there are adequate systems and processes exist in the Company to monitor and
ensure compliance with applicable General laws and Labour Laws.

I have also examined the compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards,
etc. mentioned above except to the extent as mentioned below:

Regulation31A of SEBI( Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 relating to the Re-classification of
Promoter and Promoter Group’s entities not complied with.

I have not examined compliance with applicable Financial Laws, like Direct and Indirect Tax Laws, since the same have been
subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted as per the requirements of Listing regulations and
the Companies Act, 2013. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act.

Adequate notices are given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

The minutes of the Annual General Meeting, Board Meetings and Committee Meetings of the Board were duly signed by the
Chairman. All the decisions of the Board meetings and Committee meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in their
respective minute books and no dissenting vote has been recorded in the minutes on any matter.

As per the records, the Company generally filed all the forms, returns, documents and resolutions as were required to be filed with
the Registrar of Companies and other authorities and all the formalities relating to the same is in compliance with the Act.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of
the Company to monitor and ensure the compliances with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period, there are no other specific events/actions having a major bearing on the affairs of the
Company in pursuance of the laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. have taken place.

This report is to be read with my Letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-2-A and forms an integral part of this Report.

Sd/-
(Kamlesh Gupta)

Practicing Company Secretary
Place: Gurugram Membership No. A-13862
Date: 20th July, 2020 C.P. No. 10451

UDIN: A013862B000476995

Annexure-2-A
To
The Members
Milkfood Limited
P.O. Bahadurgarh
Distt. Patiala
Punjab

My Report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My responsibility is to express
an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of contents of the Secretarial Records. The verifications were done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
the Secretarial Records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about the compliances of Laws, Rules and Regulations
and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, Standards is the responsibility
of the Management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sd/-
(Kamlesh Gupta)

Practicing Company Secretary
Place: Gurugram Membership No. A-13862
Date: 20th July, 2020 C.P. No. 10451
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Annexure-3

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken
and a reference to the weblink to the CSR Policy and projects or programs.

The Company has assumed the responsibility to contribute to create positive and lasting social impact by addressing
various needs of the society through its CSR programs. The Company has adopted its CSR Policy striving for economic
and social development that positively impacts the society at large. CSR Policy of the Company provides the overview of
projects or programs which are proposed to be undertaken by the Company.

The Company has conducted CSR to contribute to the Prime Minister’s Citizen Assistance and Relief in Emergency
Situation Fund (PM CARES Fund) to deal with any kind of emergency situation such as that posed by COVID 19 pandemic
or any other fund set up by the Central Government for socio-economic development and relief and welfare of the Scheduled
Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women.

A formal CSR Policy as per the requirement under the Companies Act, 2013 was adopted by the Board. The details of the
Policy of the Company are available at website of the Company.

< Weblink:

http://www.milkfoodltd.com/img/downloads/Milkfood_Corporate_Social_Responsibility_Policy.pdf

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:

1. Mr. Harmesh Mohan Sood,

2. Mrs. Asha Gadi,

3. Mrs. Preeti Mathur

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years:

Average Net Profit: [Rs. 7,46,49,215/-]

Financial Year Amount in Rs.

2016-17 - 96,21,629/-

2017-18 9,78,37,334/-

2018-19 13,57,31,941/-

Total Profit 22,39,47,646/-

Average Net Profit 7,46,49,215/-

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. of the amount as in item 3 above):

2% of Average Profit = Rs. 14,92,984/-

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year

a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year – Rs. 14,92,984/-. Total amount spent for the Financial Year – Rs.
15,00,000/-

b) Amount unspent, if any - Nil

c) Manner in which the amount spent is detailed below-
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S.No. CSR Sector in Projects or Amount Amount Cumulative Amount
project or which the programme: outlay spent on expenditure spent:
activity project is (i) Local area (Budget) project or up to the date Direct or
identified covered or other project or programs: of reporting through

(Schedule ii) Specify programme Sub head: implementing
VII of the the State or wise 1. Direct agencies
Companies District expenditure
Act, 2013) where the on project or

projects or programme;
programmes 2. Overhead
was undertaken

1. Contribution to NA Contribution to Rs. 15,00,000/- Rs. 15,00,000/- Rs. 15,00,000/- Direct
Prime Minister’s Prime Minister’s
Citizen Assistance Citizen Assistance
and Relief in and Relief in
Emergency Emergency
Situation Fund Situation Fund
(PM CARES Fund) (PM CARES Fund)

Total - - Rs. 15,00,000/- Rs. 15,00,000/- Rs.15,00,000/-

Note:- Due to lock down under COVID 19 pandemic, the Company has deposited CSR amount of Rs. 15 Lakhs for the financial
year 2019-20 on 14th April, 2020. The CSR amount deposited is treated as CSR expenditure for the financial year 2019-20.

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any
part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report.- Not Applicable

7. CSR Committee hereby confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives
and CSR Policy of the Company.

Sd/-  Sd/-
Sudhir Avasthi  Harmesh Mohan Sood

Place: New Delhi Chief Executive Officer Chairman–CSR Committee
Date: 20th July, 2020
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Annexure-4
Information under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st March, 2020:-

1. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

I. Your Company has been making efforts to reduce energy consumption by focusing on improving the steam efficiency
and capacity utilization, up-gradation of technology, modernization of plants/ training and motivation of employees
towards energy conservation.

II. The Company has installed steam turbine for generation of electricity and fuel efficient boiler. Implementation of
refrigeration systems consuming low power has been completed.

III. There is no capital investment on energy conservation equipments during the year.

Details pertaining to energy consumption as prescribed are given hereunder:

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2020 31.03.2019

A) Power and Fuel consumption
1) Electricity

a) Purchased
Units 35,42,693 31,29,130
Total Value (Rs.) 2,95,89,206 2,61,97,073
Rate/Unit (Rs.) 8.35 8.37

b) Own Generation
(i) Through Diesel Generator

Units 94,734 88,038
Total Value (Rs.) 24,82,200 19,59,060

Unit per litre of:  
Diesel Oil 2.51 2.98
Cost/Unit (Rs.) 26.20 22.25

(ii) Through Steam Turbine
Units 3,31,455 4,64,219
Total Value (Rs.) 28,62,700 46,60,758

Unit per Kgs of: 8.64 10.04
Steam 18,817 16,868
Cost/Unit (Rs.) 0.15 2.01

2) Others/Internal Generation
Rice Husk/Petroleum Coke/Charcoal
Buggase/Fire Wood
Quantity(MT) 1,45,602 1,02,529
Total Amount (Rs.) 5,99,61,848 3,84,88,323
Avg. Rate (Rs.) 4,118 3,754

The Company has two manufacturing plants at different locations and produces various products and uses different
sources of energy in different combinations for the different products. It is, therefore, not feasible to arrive at the
energy consumption per unit for each source of energy.

2. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

The Company has not imported any technology for the various products being produced / marketed by it. Up-gradation of
technology is a continuous process. There is ongoing work for the quality improvement, finding alternative packing materials,
improvement in the various processes. No expenditure has been incurred on research & development during the year.

3. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO : NIL
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Annexure-5
Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2020

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

1. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN LI5201PB1973PLC003746

ii Registration Date 31-03-1973

iii Name of the Company Milkfood Limited

iv Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Company Limited by Shares

v Address of the Registered office Bahadurgarh, Distt. Patiala (Punjab)-147021
and contact details Ph. 0175-2381404Fax: 0175-2380248

vi Whether Listed Company Yes (Listed in BSE Ltd.)

vii Name, Address and Contact details Alankit Assignments Limited
of Registrar and TransferAgent, if any 205-208, Anarkali Complex, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi-110055

Phone: 011-42541234, 23541234, e-mail: rta@alankit.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

Sl. Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover
No. main products / services Product/ Service of the Company
1 Ghee 15203 99.69
2 Milk Powder 15201 00.31

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. Name and Address CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/ % of Applicable
No. of the Company Associate Shares held Section
1 MFL Trading Private Limited U51109DL2010PTC208069 Subsidiary 100 Section 2(87) (ii)

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as % of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at % Change
Shareholders beginning of the year the end of the year during

the year
Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of

Total Total
Share Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF 2400084 0 2400084 49.12 2400084 0 2400084 49.12 0

b) CentralGovt. or State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) Bodies Corporate 48250 0 48250 0.99 48250 0 48250 0.99 0

d) Bank /FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SUB TOTAL: (A) (1) 2448334 0 2448334 50.11 2448334 0 2448334 50.11 0

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs - Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at % Change
Shareholders beginning of the year the end of the year during

the year
Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of

Total Total
Share Shares

d) Banks /FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-Total(A) (2):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Shareholding of 2448334 0 2448334 50.11 2448334 0 2448334 50.11 0
Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+ (A)(2)

B. Public Shareholding

1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds 0 2600 2600 0.05 0 2600 2600 0.05 0

b) Banks/FI 50 450 500 0.01 50 350 400 0.01 0

c) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Venture Capital Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

g) FPIs 323849 0 323849 6.63 375588 0 375588 7.69 +1.06

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub Total: (B) (1) 323899 3050 326949 6.69 375638 2950 378588 7.75 +1.06

(2) Non Institutions

a) Bodies Corporate 1367140 3962 1371102 28.06 1348740 3862 1352602 27.68 -0.38

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders holding 386005 313798 699803 14.32 358372 303819 662191 13.55 -0.77
 nominal share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakhs

i) Individual shareholders holding 24497 0 24497 0.50 31774 0 31774 0.65 +0.15
nominal share capital in excess
of Rs.1 lakhs

c) Any other (specify)

i) NRIs & NRNR 10642 1000 11642 0.24 6417 900 7317 0.15 -0.09

ii) Trust 500 0 500 0.01 100 0 100 0.00 -0.01

iii) NBFCs registered with RBI 500 0 500 0.01 0 0 0 0.00 -0.01

iv) Clearing Member 3113 0 3113 0.06 5534 0 5534 0.11 +0.05

Sub-Total (B) (2):- 1792397 318760 2111157 43.20 1750937 308581 2059518 42.14 -1.06

Total Public Shareholding (B)= 2116296 321810 2438106 49.89 2126575 311531 2438106 49.89 0
(B) (1) + (B) (2)

C. Shares held by Custodian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
for GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) 4564630 321810 4886440 100 4574909 311531 4886440 100 0
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl. Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
No. beginning of the year end of the year

No. of % of % of No. of % of % of % change
Shares total Shares Shares total Shares in share

Shares Pledged/ Shares Pledged/ holding
of the encumbered of the encumbered during

company to total company to total the year
shares shares

1. Karamjit Jaiswal 1700024 34.79 0 1700024 34.79 0 0

2. Roshini Sanah Jaiswal 700060 14.33 0 700060 14.33 0 0

3. Blue Skies Investments Pvt. Ltd. 25250 0.52 0 25250 0.52 0 0

4. Snowhite Holdings Pvt. Ltd. 23000 0.47 0 23000 0.47 0 0

Total 2448334 50.11 0 2448334 50.11 0 0

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. Shareholding at the Cumulative shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

No. of % of Total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of Shares Shares of

the Company the Company

1. At the beginning of the year 2448334 50.11 2448334 50.11

2. Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons
for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/ No Change in promoters shareholding during the year
bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

3. At the end of the year 2448334 50.11 2448334 50.11

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl. For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative shareholding
No. Shareholders beginning of the year during the year

No. of % of Total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of Shares Shares of

the Company the Company

1. Dhanvani Investments Private Ltd.
At the beginning of the year 560861 11.48 560861 11.48
Bought / Sold during the year 0 0 560861 11.48
At the end of the year - - 560861 11.48

2. Sudha Commercial Company Limited
At the beginning of the year 489103 10.01 489103 10.01
Bought / Sold during the year 0 0 489103 10.01
At the end of the year - - 489103 10.01

3. Jupiter India Fund
At the beginning of the year 265695 5.43 265695 5.43
Bought / Sold during the year
05/04/2019-Purchase 3471 0.08 269166 5.51
12/04/2019-Purchase 1115 0.02 270281 5.53
19/04/2019-Purchase 2256 0.05 272537 5.58
26/04/2019-Purchase 4001 0.08 276538 5.66
03/05/2019-Purchase 558 0.01 277096 5.67
10/05/2019-Purchase 6177 0.13 283273 5.80
17/05/2019-Purchase 8865 0.18 292138 5.98
24/05/2019-Purchase 1249 0.02 293387 6.00
31/05/2019-Purchase 3293 0.07 296680 6.07
07/06/2019-Purchase 3835 0.08 300515 6.15
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Sl. For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative shareholding
No. Shareholders beginning of the year during the year

No. of % of Total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of Shares Shares of

the Company the Company

14/06/2019-Purchase 2072 0.04 302587 6.19
21/06/2019-Purchase 5650 0.11 308237 6.30
28/06/2019-Purchase 3241 0.07 311478 6.37
05/07/2019-Purchase 838 0.02 312316 6.39
12/07/2019-Purchase 5118 0.10 317434 6.50
At the end of the year - - 317434 6.50

4. CRC Fincap Private Limited
At the beginning of the year 176275 3.61 176275 3.61
Bought / Sold during the year 0 0 176275 3.61
At the end of the year - - 176275 3.61

5. Shiv Muskan Investments Private Limited
At the beginning of the year 110000 2.25 110000 2.25
Bought / Sold during the year 0 0 110000 2.25
At the end of the year - - 110000 2.25

6. Jupiter South Asia Investment Company Limited
At the beginning of the year 58154 1.90 58154 1.90
Bought / Sold during the year 0 0 58154 1.90
At the end of the year - - 58154 1.90

7. Uma Pal
At the beginning of the year 1573 0.03 1573 0.03
Bought/ Sold during the year
22/11/2019-Purchase 400 0.01 1973 0.04
06/12/2019-Purchase 5688 0.12 7661 0.16
27/12/2019-Purchase 3168 0.06 10829 0.22
31/12/2019-Purchase 399 0.01 11228 0.23
03/01/2020-Purchase 1673 0.03 12901 0.26
06/01/2020-Purchase 100 0.00 13001 0.26
17/01/2020-Purchase 2172 0.05 15173 0.31
24/01/2020-Purchase 1171 0.02 16344 0.33

8. Ashish Agarwal
At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
Bought/ Sold during the year
15/11/2019-Purchase 3884 0.08 3884 0.08
22/11/2019-Purchase 3459 0.07 7343 0.15
29/11/2019-Purchase 8087 0.16 15430 0.31
At the end of the year - - 15430 0.31

9. Ateev Chaddha
At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
Bought/ Sold during the year
15/11/2019-Purchase 2400 0.50 2400 0.50
22/11/2019-Purchase 3670 0.07 6070 0.12
29/11/2019-Purchase 930 0.02 7000 0.14
03/01/2020-Purchase 350 0.01 7350 0.15
06/01/2020-Purchase 870 0.02 8220 0.17
10/01/2020-Purchase 630 0.01 8850 0.18
17/01/2020-Purchase 150 0.00 9000 0.18
At the end of the year - - 9000 0.18

10. JM Financial Services Limited
At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
Bought/ Sold during the year
27/09/2019 – Purchase 5 0.00 5 0.00
30/09/2019 – Sold 5 0.00 0 0.00
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Sl. For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative shareholding
No. Shareholders beginning of the year during the year

No. of % of Total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of Shares Shares of

the Company the Company

21/02/2020-Purchase 3050 0.06 3050 0.06
28/02/2020-Sold 3050 0.06 0 0.00
06/03/2020-Purchase 1682 0.03 1682 0.03
13/03/2020- Sold 1682 0.03 0 0.00
31/03/2020-Purchase 4922 0.10 4922 0.10
At the end of the year - - 4922 0.10

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. For Each of the Directors and KMP Shareholding at the Cumulative shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

No. of % of Total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of Shares Shares of

the Company the Company

A.1 Directors:

Mr. Harmesh Mohan Sood-Director
At the beginning of the year 20 00 20 00
Bought / Sold during the year 00 00 20 00
At the end of the year - - 20 00

B.1 Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs):

Mr. Sudhir Avasthi- CEO
At the beginning of the year 100 00 100 00
Bought/Sold during the year - - 100 00
At the end of the year - - 100 00

None of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company holds shares in the Company.

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
 (Rs. in Lakhs)

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Deposits Loans Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 1321.37 417.93 1.65 1740.95

ii) Interest due but not paid - - 5.46 5.46

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - -  -

Total (i+ii+iii) 1321.37 417.93 7.11 1746.41

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

• Addition 1219.72 525.84 - 1745.56

• Reduction 691.76 271.52 0.42  963.70

Net Change 527.96 254.32 (-)0.42 781.86

Indebtedness at theend of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 1849.33 672.25 1.50 2523.08

ii) Interest due but not paid - - 5.19 5.19

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - -   -

Total (i+ii+iii) 1849.33 672.25 6.69 2528.27
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration paid to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total
No. Amount

- - - -

1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) Nil

of the Income-tax Act,1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s17(2) Income-tax Act,1961 Nil
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Nil

Income- tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option Nil

3. Sweat Equity Nil

4. Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify… Nil

5. Others, please specify Nil

Total (A) Nil

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration paid to other Directors: (In Rupees)

Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
No. Amount

Mrs. Gita Mrs. Asha Mr. Kewal Mr. Anil Mr. Harmesh Mrs. Preeti Mr. Lalit
Bawa Gadi Krishan Girotra Mohan Mathur Kumar

Kohli Sood

1. Independent Directors

• Fee for attending board meetings/ committee meetings 50,000/- 55,000/- 5000/- 5000/- - - - 1,15,000/-

• Commission - - - - - - - -

• Others, please specify - - - - - - - -

Total (1) 50,000/- 55,000/- 5000/- 5000/- - - - 1,15,000/-

2. Other Non-Executive Directors

• Fee for attending board meetings/committee meets - - - - 55,000/- 55,000/- 5,000/- 1,15,000/-

• Commission - - - - - - - -

• Others, please specify - - - - - - - -

Total (2) - - - - 55,000/- 55,000/- 5,000/- 1,15,000/-

Total (B)=(1+2) 50,000/- 55,000/- 5,000/- 5,000/- 55,000/- 55,000/- 5,000/- 2,30,000/-

Total ManagerialRemuneration 50,000/- 55,000/- 5,000/- 5,000/- 55,000/- 55,000/- 5,000/- 2,30,000/-

Overall Ceiling as per the Act.
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD
(Rs in Lakhs)

Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No.

CEO CFO Company Total
Secretary

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 156.00 19.39 7.78 183.17
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961  21.11 2.34 0.99 24.44

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) - -  -  -
Income-tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option - - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - - -

4. Commission

- as % of profit

- Others, specify… - - - -

5. Others:

Medical 4.55 0.73 - 5.28

LTA - 1.61 0.38 1.99

Employer Provident Fund 18.72 1.67 0.55 20.94

Any others  0.36 -  -   0.36

Total 200.74 25.74 9.70 236.18

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal
the Companies Description Penalty/ (RD/ NCLT/ made if
Act Punishment/ Court) any (give

Compounding details)
fees imposed

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment NONE

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment NONE

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT (COMPANY SECRETARY)

Penalty

Punishment NONE

Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-  Sd/-
Harmesh Mohan Sood Asha Gadi

Place: New Delhi Director Director
Date: 20th July, 2020  DIN: 07951620 DIN:00110734
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Annexure-6

A. DETAILS PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE
5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Relevant Prescribed Requirement Particulars
Clause
u/r 5(1)

(i) Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the Not Applicable. (Company is not paying any
median remuneration of the employees of the remuneration to its directors).
company for the financial year.

(ii) Percentage increase in remuneration of each - Mr. Sudhir Avasthi, CEO - 25%
Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial - Mr. Sanjeev Kothiala, CFO - 20%
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, - Mr. Rakesh Kumar Thakur, Company Secretary - 15%
in the financial year.

(iii) Percentage increase in the median remuneration 11%
of employees in the financial year.

(iv) Number of permanent employees on the rolls 191
of Company.

(V) Average percentile increase already made in - Average increase in remuneration of
the salaries of employees other than the Managerial Personnel - 12%
managerial personnel in the last financial year - Average increase in remuneration of employee
and its comparison with the percentile increase other than Managerial Personnel -11%
in the managerial remuneration and justification
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration.

(Vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per The remuneration is as per the Nomination and
the remuneration policy of the company. Remuneration policy for Directors, KMP and other

employees of the Company, formulated pursuant to
the provision of section 178 of the Company Act, 2013.
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Annexure - 7

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: NA

(b) Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions: NA

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions: NA

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: NA

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: NA

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: NA

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: NA

(h) Date on which the resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188: NA

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: NA

(b) Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions: NA

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions: NA

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: NA

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NA

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-
Harmesh Mohan Sood Asha Gadi

Director Director
DIN:07951620 DIN:00110734
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Corporate Governance Report
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In accordance with Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [“SEBI (LODR) Regulations”], the report containing the details of Corporate
Governance of Milkfood Limited is as follows:

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company firmly believes that Corporate Governance is crucial to the very existence of a company, as the implementation
of Code on Corporate Governance goes a long way in attainment of the highest levels of transparency, accountability and
equity in all facets of operations. Your Company is committed to the adoption of best Corporate Governance Practices.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

As on 31st March, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company has seven members. The Board is primarily responsible for the
overall management of the Company’s business. None of the Directors are related to each other. The composition of the Board
of Directors is in conformity with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors of the Company is a member of more than ten Committees or Chairman of more than five Committees
across all companies in which he/she is a Director.

During the financial year 2019-20, Eleven Board meetings were held i.e. on 20.04.2019, 24.05.2019, 01.07.2019, 22.07.2019,
12.08.2019, 16.09.2019, 31.10.2019, 20.12.2019, 23.01.2020, 13.02.2020 and on 12.03.2020.

Composition of Board of Directors as on 31st March, 2020 and other details are as under:

Name Category No. of No. of Whether No. of No. of No. of
Board Board previous AGM Directorships Committee Committee
Meeting Meetings held on 26th held in other positions held positions held
held during attended Sept., 2019 companies* in other public in other public-
the financial attended limited limited
year 2019-20 companies as companies as

a Chairman a Member

Mrs. Asha Gadi Non -Executive 11 11 Yes 3 Nil Nil
Independent Director

Mrs. Gita Bawa Non -Executive 11 10 No 5*** Nil Nil
Independent Director

Mr. Harmesh Non -Executive 11 11 Yes 1 Nil Nil
Mohan Sood Non Independent Director

Mrs. Preeti Mathur Non -Executive 11 11 Yes Nil Nil Nil
Non Independent Director

**Mr. Kewal Non -Executive 11 1 NA 12 Nil Nil
Krishan Kohli Independent Director

**Mr. Anil Girotra Non -Executive 11 1 NA 5 Nil Nil
Independent Director

**Mr. Lalit Kumar Non -Executive 11 1 NA 1 Nil 1
Non Independent Director

*Directorship held in other companies by the Directors of the Company is on the basis of the information furnished by the
Directors.
**Mr. Kewal Krishan Kohli and Mr. Anil Girotra were appointed as the Additional Directors of the Company in the Board meeting
held on 13th February, 2020 in the category of Non Executive Independent Directors.
**Mr. Lalit Kumar was appointed as the Additional Director of the Company in the Board meeting held on 13th February, 2020
in the category of Non Executive Non Independent Director.
*** Three companies are under the process of striking off.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING:

During the year under review, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 31st December, 2019, without the
attendance of Non-Independent Directors and members of Management. All the Independent Directors Viz. Mrs. Gita Bawa
and Mrs. Asha Gadi were present at the meeting. The following issues were discussed in detail:

i) Review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;

ii) Assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness flow of information between the Company Management and the Board
that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.
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NO. OF SHARES HELD BY THE NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

None of the Non Executive Directors of the Company held any shares of the Company except Mr. Harmesh Mohan Sood who
holds 20 shares of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of two Independent Directors and one Non Executive Non Independent
Director. The terms of reference, role and powers of the Audit Committee are in accordance with the provisions of Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

As on 31st March, 2020, the composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Name Designation

Mrs. Asha Gadi Chairperson

Mrs. Gita Bawa Member

Mr. Harmesh Mohan Sood Member

Mr. Rakesh Kumar Thakur, Company Secretary, acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

During the financial year 2019-20, the Audit Committee held Six meetings i.e. on 20th April, 2019, 24th May, 2019, 22nd July,
2019, 12th August, 2019, 31st October, 2019 and on 13th February, 2020.

Attendance at the meetings is as follows:

Name of Members No. of meetings held during Meetings attended
the financial year 2019-20

Mrs. Asha Gadi 6 6

Mrs. Gita Bawa 6 6

Mr. Harmesh Mohan Sood 6 6

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of two Independent Directors and one Non Executive Non Independent
Director. The terms of reference, role and powers of the Committee are in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

As on 31st March, 2020, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of the following three Directors of the Company:

Name Designation

Mrs. Asha Gadi Chairperson

Mrs. Gita Bawa Member

Mrs. Preeti Mathur Member

During the financial year 2019-20, four meetings of the Committee were held on 20th April, 2019, 24th May, 2019, 10th December,
2019 and on 13th February, 2020.

Attendance at the meeting is as follows:

Name of Members No. of meetings held during Meetings attended
the financial year 2019-20

Mrs. Asha Gadi 4 4

Mrs. Gita Bawa 4 4

Mrs. Preeti Mathur 4 4

COMPANY’S POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KMPs AND OTHER SENIOR
EMPLOYEES:

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has formulated a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, KMPs and
senior employees and for the determination of their remuneration. The highlights of this policy are as follows:

1. Criteria of Selection of Non Executive Directors and Remuneration:

a. The Non Executive Directors shall be of high integrity with relevant expertise and experience so as to have a diverse
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Board with Directors having expertise in the fields of manufacturing, marketing, finance, taxation, law, governance
and general management.

b. In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the Committee shall satisfy itself with regard to the independent
nature of the Directors vis-à-vis the Company so as to enable the Board to discharge their functions and duties
effectively.

c. The Committee shall ensure that the candidate identified for appointment as a Director is not disqualified for appointment
under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

d. The Committee shall consider the following attributes / criteria, whilst recommending to the Board the candidature for
the appointment as a Director:

i. Qualification, expertise and experience of the Directors in their respective fields;

ii. Personal, professional or business standing;

iii. Diversity of the Board.

e. In case of re-appointment of Non Executive Directors, the Board shall take into consideration the performance evaluation
of the Director and his engagement level.

Remuneration

The Non Executive Directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for participation in the Board
meetings/Committee meetings as may be approved by the Board of Directors within the overall limits as prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

The Independent Directors of the Company shall not be entitled to participate in the Stock Option Scheme of the Company,
if any, introduced by the Company.

2. Managing Director & Whole-time Director- criteria for selection/appointment and remuneration:

For the purpose of selection of Managing Director or Whole time Director, the Committee shall identify person of integrity
who possess relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities required for the position and shall take into consideration
the recommendations, if any, received from any member of the Board.

The Committee will also ensure that the incumbent fulfills such other criteria with regard to age and other qualifications as
laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable laws.

Remuneration:

1. At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the Managing Director or Whole time Director may be paid such
remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Company (which includes the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors) and the Managing Director or Whole time Director within the overall limits
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

2. The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of the members of the Company in their general meeting.

3. In determining the remuneration, the Committee shall ensure/consider the following:

a. The relationship of remuneration and performance benchmarks is clear.

b. Responsibilities required to be shouldered by the Managing Director or Whole time Director, the industry
benchmarks and the current trends.

3. Remuneration Policy for the Senior Management Employees:

In determining the remuneration of the Senior Management Employees (i.e. KMPs and senior officers just below the Board
level other than the Managing Director and Whole time Director), the Committee shall ensure / consider the following:

i. the relationship of remuneration and performance benchmark is clear;

ii. the remuneration including annual increment is decided based on the criticality of the roles responsibilities, the
Company’s performance vis-à-vis the annual budget achievement, individuals performance and current compensation
trends in the market.

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTORS:

The Company pays sitting fees to all the Non Executive Directors of the Company for the Board meetings attended by them.
The sitting fees paid to the Non Executive Directors of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 is as
follows:

S.No. Name of Directors Sitting fees

1. Mrs. Gita Bawa Rs. 50,000/-

2. Mrs. Asha Gadi Rs. 55,000/-
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S.No. Name of Directors Sitting fees

3. Mr. Harmesh Mohan Sood Rs. 55,000/-

4. Mrs. Preeti Mathur Rs. 55,000/-

5. Mr.Kewal Krishan Kohli Rs. 5,000/-

6. Mr. Anil Girotra Rs. 5,000/-

7. Mr. Lalit Kumar Rs. 5,000/-

Total Rs. 2,30,000/-

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

In view of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of Non Executive Director as the Chairperson. The functioning and
terms of reference of the Committee are as prescribed under and in due compliance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013 with particular reference to the complaints related
to transfer of shares, grievances of shareholders and also functions in an efficient manner that all issues / concerns of the
stakeholders are addressed / resolved promptly.

As on 31st March, 2020, the composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as follows:

Name Designation

Mr. Harmesh Mohan Sood Chairman

Mrs. Asha Gadi Member

Mrs. Gita Bawa Member

The Committee held two meetings during the financial year 2019-20. Attendance at meetings is as follows:

Date of Meeting Mrs. Asha Mrs. Gita Mr. Harmesh
Gadi Bawa Mohan Sood

20.04.2019 Yes Yes Yes

10.10.2019 Yes Yes Yes

During the year under review, no complaints have been received from the shareholders of the Company. Mr. Rakesh Kumar
Thakur, Company Secretary, acts as the Secretary of the Committee and also as the Compliance Officer of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprising of three Directors. The composition of
the Committee is as under:

1. Mr. Harmesh Mohan Sood, Non Executive Director – Chairman

2. Mrs. Asha Gadi, Independent Director – Member

3. Mrs. Preeti Mathur, Non Executive Director – Member

The Committee held three meetings during the financial year 2019-20. Attendance at meetings is as follows:

Date of Meeting Mrs. Asha Mrs. Preeti Mr. Harmesh
Gadi Mathur Mohan Sood

24.05.2019 Yes Yes Yes

30.12.2019 Yes Yes Yes

20.03.2020 Yes Yes Yes

The CSR Policy of the Company as approved by the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is available on the website of
the Company at www.milkfoodltd.com.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS:

Location and time for the last three AGMs:

Year Date Venue Time No. of Special Resolutions passed

2017 26.09.2017 Registered Office‘ 9.00 A.M. Nil

2018 26.09.2018 Registered Office‘ 9.00 A.M. Nil

2019 26.09.2019 Registered Office‘ 9.00 A.M. One

No resolution has been passed through Postal Ballot.



26

DISCLOSURE:

During the financial year 2019-20, the Company has entered upon related party transactions which have been disclosed in
Note 33 to the Accounts.

There has not been any non compliance and no penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock
Exchange, SEBI or any other statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets during the financial year under
review.

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements as mentioned in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Company Secretary in Practice, Ms. Kamlesh Gupta, has issued certificate dated 20th July, 2020 that none of the directors on
the Board of the Company have debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of Companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Team of the Company. All Board
Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed the compliance with the Code. A declaration to
this effect duly signed by Mr. Sudhir Avasthi, Chief Executive Officer of the Company is annexed. The Code of Conduct has
been posted on the website of the Company, www.milkfoodltd.com.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

The quarterly, half yearly and yearly financial results of the Company are forwarded to the Bombay Stock Exchange where the
shares of the Company are listed immediately upon the approval by the Board of Directors and are published in English daily
and in a Punjabi daily as required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
are posted on the Company’s website.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION:

Annual General Meeting (AGM):

Date & Time : 29th August, 2020, 9.00 A.M.
Venue : Registered Office
Book Closure Date : 22nd August, 2020 to 29th August, 2020

(both days inclusive)
Dividend : Nil

Financial Calendar for 2020-21: (Tentative)

Financial Results for
First Quarter : up to mid August, 2020
Second Quarter : up to mid November, 2020
Third Quarter : up to mid February, 2021
Fourth Quarter : up to 30th May, 2021

Market Price Data:

High and Low market price during each month in last financial year from April, 2019 to March, 2020 at Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited (BSE) is as follows:

Month High Low Sensex High Sensex Low

April,19 374 293 39487.45 38460.25

May,19 450 327 40124.96 36956.1

June,19 449 396.4 40312.07 38870.96

July,19 421 315.1 40032.41 37128.26

August,19 351.95 281.1 37807.55 36102.35

September,19 339 280.15 39441.12 35987.8

October, 19 320 241 40392.22 37415.83

November,19 450.5 320 41163.79 40014.23

December, 19 509.95 405 41809.96 40135.37

January, 20 598 476.15 42273.87 40476.55

February, 20 605 430 41709.3 38219.97

March, 20 519.85 320 39083.17 25638.9
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Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:

M/s. Alankit Assignments Ltd., 205-208, Anarkali Complex, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi-110055 acts as Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

However, keeping in view the convenience of shareholders documents relating to shares and other correspondence will continue
to be received by the Company at the Head Office at 5th Floor, Bhandari House, 91, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019.

Share Transmission System:

Transmissions of shares are processed by the Share Transfer Agent and approved by the Share Transfer Committee which
meets at frequent intervals. Share transmissions are registered and returned generally within 30 days from the date of receipt
if the relevant documents are complete in all respects.

SEBI, effective April 01, 2019 barred transfer of shares in physical of the listed companies and mandated transfer through
Demat only. However investors are allowed to hold the shares in physical form. Further there is no bar on transmission of
shares in physical form. Necessary communications were send to the shareholders as per the guidelines of SEBI.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2020:

Share holding of nominal No. of No. of % age of total
value of Rs. shareholders shares held shareholding

(Rounded off)

1-5000 4054 685505 14.03

5001-10000 1 9000 0.18

10001-20000 2 31774 0.65

20001-30000 2 48250 0.99

30001-40000 0 0 0

40001-50000 0 0 0

50001-100000 1 58154 1.19

100001 and above 7 4053757 82.96

Total 4067 * 4886440 100.00

Shareholding pattern as on 31st March, 2020

Particulars No. of shares held %age of shares held
(Rounded off)

Promoters & Promoter Group 2448334 50.10

Mutual Funds 2600 00.05

Banks, Financial Institutions &Insurance Companies 400 00.01

FPIs 375588 7.69

Corporate Bodies 1352602 27.68

Indian Public 693965 14.20

NRIs/NRNR/OCBs 7317 00.15

Trust/Clearing Member/Custodian 5634 00.12

Total *4886440 100.00

*includes 2875 partly paid up equity shares.

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity:

As the members are aware, your Company’s shares are tradable compulsory in electronic form and your Company has
established the electronic connectivity with the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL). In view of the numerous advantages offered by the Depository System, members are requested
to avail of the facility of dematerialization of the Company’s Shares on either of the Depositories as aforesaid.

As on 31st March, 2020, 93.62% Equity Capital was held in dematerialized form and the balance in physical form.

Plant Locations:

Patiala Plant: P.O. Bahadurgarh, Distt. Patiala -147021, Punjab

Moradabad Plant: Village Mugalpur, Urf Agwanpur, Kanth Road, Distt. Moradabad (U.P.)
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Address for correspondence:

Registered Office: P.O. Bahadurgarh, Distt. Patiala-147021, Punjab.

Tel: 0175-2381404, Fax: 0175-2380248

Head Office & Share Department: 5th Floor, Bhandari House, 91, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019. Tel: 011-26460670, Fax:
011-26460823

Investors’ e-mail ID: investor_grievances_redressal@milkfoodltd.com, sectl@milkfoodltd.com

Website : www.milkfoodltd.com

Disclosure of Compliances with Corporate Governance Regulations specified in SEBI (LODR) Regulations

The Company has complied with all the applicable regulations of SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

The Company submits a quarterly compliance report on corporate governance signed by the Compliance Officer to the Stock
Exchange within 15 (fifteen) days from the close of every quarter. Such quarterly compliance reports on corporate governance
are also posted on the Company’s website.

Declaration pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

I, Sudhir Avasthi, Chief Executive Officer, hereby declare that the Code of Conduct adopted by the Company for its Board and
Senior Management Personnel has been duly complied by all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the
Company.

Sd/-
New Delhi  Sudhir Avasthi
20th July, 2020 Chief Executive Officer
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Management Discussion and Analysis:
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE, OUTLOOK AND DEVELOPMENT

India has been the leading producer and consumer of dairy products worldwide since 1998 with a sustained growth in the
availability of milk and milk products. Dairy activities form an essential part of the rural Indian economy, serving as an important
source of employment and income. Moreover, nearly all of the dairy produce in India is consumed domestically, with the
majority of it being sold as fluid milk. On account of this, the Indian dairy industry holds tremendous potential for value-addition
and overall development.

There are many Opportunities and Challenges in The Indian Dairy Industry. Dairy products are a major source of cheap and
nutritious food to millions of people in India and the only acceptable source of animal protein for a large vegetarian segment of
the Indian population. Dairying has been considered as one of the activities aimed at alleviating the poverty and unemployment,
especially in the rural areas in the rain-fed and drought-prone regions.

The laws regulating the safety and quality of food are in existence since 1899. The number of legislations and quality standards
has also increased substantially with the passage of time and growth of the industry. The food sector in India is governed by a
multiplicity of laws under different Ministries. The “Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006”, aims to integrate the food safety laws
in the country in order to systematically and scientifically develop the food processing industry and shift from a regulatory
regime to self-compliance.

Organized dairy sector is growing and investor interest in dairy industry is also quite high.

The main aim of the Indian dairy industry is to enhance milk production and upgrade milk processing system by using innovative
technologies.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Opportunities

(i) With increased income levels, demand of milk products has gone up. This would mean higher consumption of conventional
milk products as also introduction of new milk based products.

(ii) Milk is a preferred source of protein by Indian populace. Milk and milk products are therefore likely to get preference from
consumers who look for protein rich food.

(iii) India is the largest producer of buffalo milk which is a preferred variety of milk for making certain type of cheese. It offers
a good export opportunity for Indian cheese made of buffalo milk.

Threats

(i) Milk prices are expected to increase due to lower supply of Milk, resulting into higher cost.

(ii) Production of milk in India is very widely scattered in rural areas and at vast distances from the places of consumption i.e.
urban areas.

(iii) The trend of adulterated Ghee continues to plague the market which is a serious health risk for the consumers.

(vi) With increase in education level of young farmers, there is a tendency among the young folk to prefer white collar jobs over
conventional dairy farming profession.

GROWTH OUTLOOK

The Indian economy is the fastest growing major economy and is projected to grow faster in the coming years.

Rapid urbanization has led to a major increase in the demand for packaged/processed foods, favorably impacting the dairy
industry in the country. In the era of digitization and increased access to actionable information, the Indian populace is becoming
health and product quality conscious, which has led to the improved variety of food products available in the country. The
increase in working population is leading to increased demand for convenient healthy and tasty products by the consumers.

Milk production as well as production of milk products by organized sector is expected to grow at a robust pace. Higher rate of
growth is expected in value added dairy products. Western dairy products, which currently occupy a small space, are likely to
grow on a faster clip. Packaged milk and products are likely to progressively replace loose milk and products.

EXPANSION PLANS

Company holds on to its long term vision of becoming a significant player in Dairy space.

RISKS & CONCERNS

With rise in education level of rural population, young generation of farmers is showing apathy for their ancestral profession.
There is a tendency in them to prefer white collar jobs over dairy farming in its present form.

Government - both Central and State - have increased their focus on ensuring safe food products including milk products to the
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consumer. However, due to the lack of adequate testing equipments in Government labs, lot of fear and confusion has been
created in the minds of industry as well as consumers.

SEGMENT WISE /PRODUCT WISE REPORTING

The Company is operating in the single segment and engaged in the manufacture and sales of dairy products i.e. pure ghee,
skimmed milk powder, whole milk powder, casein, de-mineralized whey powder and dairy whitener. Therefore, segment wise
information has not been disclosed.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has structured the internal control system. In view of the large size of the business and to enforce highest levels
of transparency, the Company has appointed an independent firm of Chartered Accountants, M/s. Pardeep Sharma & Associates,
to act as the internal auditor of the Company covering nearly all aspects related to the working of the Company. The Company
has paid particular attention on proper maintenance of equipments to ensure that they are operated at the rated capacities.
The Company has taken the effective steps for the reduction of cost and to improve the quality of the product.

The Company has in place adequate internal controls commensurate with the size and nature of its operations.

The integrated financial accounting system supported by inbuilt controls, ensures reliable and timely financial and operational
reporting.

The management has taken the stringent steps to give better milk products to the consumer.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Financial performance of the Company has been given separately in the Directors’ Report.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Employees are considered as key stakeholders in the progress of organisation and various initiatives are being taken to
upgrade their skills through internal and external trainings. Job rotation opportunities are encouraging people to take on new
roles and maximize their learning and work experience. Reward and Recognition schemes are being introduced to develop a
competitive and performance oriented work culture. It goes without saying that human resource is of primary importance to any
productive activity.

Manpower in the form of labour, supervisors and management personnel are properly selected and deployed to have optimum
output and to carry out operations smoothly. Company has laid high emphasis on suitable policies and strategies to up keep
the high level of human motivation towards the plant operations. Company is aimed to establish the atmosphere that all human
resource from labours to managers behaves in the context of the organizational objectives.

Industrial Relations remained cordial throughout the year under review.

DISCLAIMER STATEMENT

Statements made in the Report describing the current industry structure, development are based on certain assumptions and
expectations. The Company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations are accurate.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-  Sd/-
Place : New Delhi Harmesh Mohan Sood Asha Gadi
Date : 20th July, 2020 Director Director

DIN:07951620 DIN:00110734
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CERTIFICATE ON THE COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members of Milkfood Limited

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by M/s Milkfood Limited for the year ended March 31,
2020, as per the relevant applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(Listing Regulations).

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management. My examination was limited to
a review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor any expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

On the basis of my review and according to the information and explanations given to me, I certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Regulations, as applicable.

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor as to the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sd/-
(Kamlesh Gupta)

Practicing Company Secretary
Place: Gurugram Membership No. A-13862
Date: 20th July, 2020 C.P. No. 10451

UDIN: A013862B000477039

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To
The Members
Milkfood Limited
P.O. Bahadurgarh
Distt. Patiala,
Punjab

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms and returns maintained / filed by Milkfood Limited (CIN:
L15201PB1973PLC003746) having its Registered Office at P.O. Bahadurgarh, Distt. Patiala, Punjab, referred to as “the
Company”) and notices and disclosures received from the Directors of the Company and produced before me by the Company
for the purpose of issuing this certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C Sub clause 10(i)
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including verification of Director Identification
Number status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary by me and explanations furnished to me by the Company,
I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as on March 31, 2020 have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such other statutory authority.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This certificate is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sd/-
(Kamlesh Gupta)

Practicing Company Secretary
Place: Gurugram Membership No. A-13862
Date: 20th July, 2020 C.P. No. 10451

UDIN: A013862B000476951
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MILKFOOD LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Milkfood Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the profit and total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of matter:

Attention is drawn to the Note no 4 regarding biological asset, Note no 6(i) & (ii) regarding trade receivable, Note no 7(i)
regarding security deposit, Note no 7(ii) & 10(i) regarding amount due from employees, Note no 8(iii) regarding insurance
claim receivable, Note no 9(i) regarding non/slow moving stock, Note no 13(i) regarding advance to supplier, Note no 17(i)
regarding classification of security deposit received and Note no 33(iii) regarding rent paid.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India(ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have
fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

The company operates in various states within India, exposing
it to a variety of different Central and State Laws, regulations
and interpretations thereof. In this regulatory environment,
there is an inherent risk of litigation and claims.

Consequently, provisions and contingent liability disclosures
may arise from direct and indirect tax proceeding, legal
proceedings including regulatory and other government/
department proceedings, as well as investigations by
authorities and commercial claims.

At March 31, 2020, the Company’s contingent liabilities for

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our procedures included:

Reviewing the outstanding litigations against the Company
for consistency with the previous years. Enquire and obtain
explanations for movement during the year.

Discussing the status of significant known actual and potential
litigations with the Company’s in-house officials and other
senior management personnel who have knowledge of these
matters and assessing their responses.

Reading the latest correspondence between the Company and
the various tax/legal authorities and review of correspondence
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation
of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in

legal matters were Rs. 71 Lakhs (refer Note to the standalone
financial statement) and provision for legal matters aggregated
Nil. This represents tax of Rs.71 Lakhs levied by u/s 47 of
Rajasthan Sales Tax Act. 1994. The tax has been levied on
account of non-deposit of sale tax by the consignment agent
of the company. Department is of the view that liability of
principal and agent is joint and several.

Management applies significant judgment in estimating the
likelihood of the future outcome in each case when considering
whether, and how much, to provide or in determining the
required disclosure for the potential exposure of each matter.
This is due to the highly complex nature and magnitude of the
legal matters involved along with the fact that resolution of tax
and legal proceedings may span over multiple years, and may
involve protracted negotiation or litigation.

These estimates could change substantially overtime as new
facts emerge as each legal case progresses.

Given the inherent complexity and magnitude of potential
exposures across the Company and the judgment necessary
to estimate the amount of provisions required or to determine
required disclosures, this is a key audit matter.

The outbreak of Covid-19 has caused significant disturbances
and thrown many challenges. The company has two
manufacturing plant location and significant inventory is held
at plants. The company is engaged in essential services (dairy
Business). The management has conducted the physical
verification of inventories at close of the year. These inventories
were also physically verified by the internal auditor subsequent
to the date of Balance Sheet. Inventories constitute a material
item and are a key matter.

During the year under audit company’s other operating revenue
(Conversion Charges of milk to powder and butter) registered
significant increase over the previous year. The company has
entered an agreement with third parties for conversion of milk
to powder and butter at specified rate as per the agreement.
This is a key Audit Matter.

with / legal opinions obtained by the management, from
external legal advisors, where applicable, for significant
matters and considering the same in evaluating the
appropriateness of the Company’s provisions or disclosures
on such matters.

Examining the Company’s legal expenses and reading the
minutes of the board meetings, in order to ensure that all cases
have been identified.

With respect to tax matters, involving our tax specialists, and
discussing with the Company’s tax officers, their views and
strategies on significant cases, as well as the related technical
grounds relating to their conclusions based on applicable tax
laws.

Assessing the decisions and rationale for provisions held or
for decisions not to record provisions or make disclosures.

For those matters where management concluded that no
provisions should be recorded, considered the adequacy and
completeness of the Company’s disclosures.

Due to Covid-19 lockdown, We could not attend the physical
verification at the close of the year. We attend the physical
stock taking subsequent to the date of balance Sheet. We
adopted and performed the additional procedure of “Roll Back”
to determine the quantity of inventory at close of the year.

We have performed the required audit procedures of
verification of receipt of milk with weigh in slips. Comparison
of actual production with standard production as prescribed
in agreement. We also verified dispatches on the basis on
delivery challan & weigh in slip and Revenue recognized on
the basis of rate prescribed in the agreement. The income
generated on account of conversion is shown in note 23(ii) of
the financial statement.
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accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results
of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in
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terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in
the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2. With respect to matter to be included in the Auditor’s report under section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid/provided any
managerial remuneration to its directors for the year ended March 31, 2020. Therfore provision of section 197 (16) are not
applicable.

3. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books;

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and the statement of cash flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act;

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”; and

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements;

ii. the Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses;

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 015260N

Sarthak Madaan
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 27-06-2020 Membership number: 547131

UDIN: 20547131AAAAAG8417
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report
The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Milkfood Limited (“the company”) on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, we report that:

(i) In respect of fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a programme of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items in a phased manner over a
period of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature
of its assets. Pursuant to the said programme, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the Management
during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company. Original copy of title deed
has not been produced as the same is deposited as security with bank under loan agreement as confirmed by the
management.

(ii) As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified at the year end by the management. Due to COVID-19
lockdown we could not attend physical verification at the close of the year. We attended physical verification done
subsequent to the reporting date and roll back procedure to reach the reporting date quantity and no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification. Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them through certificate as
at 31 March 2020 and no material discrepancies were noticed on such confirmation.

(iii) The Company has not granted loans to party covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’). Thus, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loans and
made any investment within the meaning of section 185 & 186 of the Act. Thus, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(v) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not accepted any deposits during the year.
Company is of the view that provision of Section 74(1)(b) of the Act are complied with in pursuance of Rule 19 of the
Acceptance of Deposits Rules, 2014. It is also confirmed by the company that no order has been passed by the Company
Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our review of the cost records maintained
by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Government
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 we are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records have
been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determining whether
they are accurate or complete.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident
Fund, Employees State insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. There were
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues in arrears as at 31.03.2020 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, wealth tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess which have not been deposited as at 31.03.2020
on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowing to a financial institution, bank, Government during the year.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the term loans have been applied by the
company during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.
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(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not paid/provided any managerial remuneration within the meaning of section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Act.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company
as certified by the management transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 015260N

Sarthak Madaan
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 27-06-2020 Membership number: 547131

UDIN: 20547131AAAAAG8417

Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Milkfood Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March
2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
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over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 015260N

Sarthak Madaan
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 27-06-2020 Membership number: 547131

UDIN: 20547131AAAAAG8417
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Balance Sheet
as at 31st March, 2020
Particulars Notes As at As at

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)  (Rs. in Lakhs)

A ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3A 18,091 16,621
Capital work in progress 3B 163 173
Right -of -use -assets 3C 166 -
Biological assets 4 230 219
Financial assets
- Investments 5 3 2
- Trade receivable 6 18 10
- Deposit, loans & advances 7 106 116
Other non-current assets 8 962 468

-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
Total non - current assets 19,739 17,609

-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
2 Current assets

Inventories 9 5,857 6,809
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 6 3,286 2,199
- Loans 10 33 80
- Cash and cash equivalents 11 355 461
- Others 12 105 14
Other current assets 13 600 1,087
Current tax assets (net) 31B 43 -

-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
Total current assets 10,279 10,650

-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
TOTAL ASSETS 30,018 28,259

============================= =============================
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 Shareholders’ funds
Equity share capital 14 489 489
Other equity 15 11,180 10,340

-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
Total equity 11,669 10,829

-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
2 Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 16 1,162 933
- Other financial liabilities 17 6,108 5,827
- Lease liabilities 17A 115 -
Deffered tax liabilities (net) 31C 926 594
Provisions 18 A 206 207

-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
Total non - current liabilities 8,517 7,561

-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
3 Current liabilities

Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 19 4,888 4,157
- Lease laibilities 17A 61 -
- Trade payables 20

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 38 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than above 3,106 4,448

- Other financial liabilities 21 1,500 980
Other current liabilities 22 109 140
Provisions 18B 130 94
Current tax liabilities (net) 31A - 50

-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
Total current liabilities 9,832 9,869

-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 30,018 28,259

============================= =============================
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes 1 to 41 are integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of Milkfood Ltd
For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 015260N Harmesh Mohan Sood Asha Gadi Anil Girotra

Director Director Director
SARTHAK MADAAN 07951620 00110734 00110631
Partner
Membership No.: 547131
Place : New Delhi Rakesh Thakur Sanjeev Kothiala Sudhir Avasthi
Date : 27th June 2020 Company Secretary C.F.O. C.E.O.
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Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31st March, 2020

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Note No. 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

(Rs. in Lakhs)  (Rs. in Lakhs)

1 Revenue from operations 23 55,141 53,059
2 Other income 24 61 31

-------------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------------
3 Total revenue (1+2) 55,202 53,090

============================= =============================
4 Expenses

(a) Cost of materials consumed 25 47,205 45,178
(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods 26 745 651

and work-in-progress
(c) Employee benefits expenses 27 2,085 2,017
(d) Finance cost 28 840 788
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 29 811 683
(f) Other expenses 30 2,639 2,436

-------------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------------
Total expenses 54,325 51,753

============================= =============================
5 Profit before tax (3-4) 877 1,337

6 Tax expense/ (credit) (net)
(a) Current tax 31B 213 295
(b) Earlier year tax expenses 7 17
(c) MAT credit recognition (515) (322)
(d) Deferred tax 31C 333 323

-------------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------------
Total tax expenses / (credit) 38 313

-------------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------------
7 Profit/(loss) for the period (5-6) 839 1,024

============================= =============================
8 Other comprehensive income:

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 2 (22)
Tax impact on re-measurement gain/ (losses) (1) 7
on defined benefit plans
Total other comprehensive income/ (losses) -------------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------------
for the year (net of tax) 1 (15)

-------------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------------
Total comprehensive income for the year 840 1,009

============================= =============================
9 Earnings per share (of Rs. 10/- each):

Basic and diluted - in Rs. 32 17.15 20.94
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes 1 to 41 are integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of Milkfood Ltd
For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 015260N Harmesh Mohan Sood Asha Gadi Anil Girotra

Director Director Director
SARTHAK MADAAN 07951620 00110734 00110631
Partner
Membership No.: 547131
Place : New Delhi Rakesh Thakur Sanjeev Kothiala Sudhir Avasthi
Date : 27th June 2020 Company Secretary C.F.O. C.E.O.
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31st March, 2020

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)  (Rs. in Lakhs)

A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Net profit before taxation 877 1337

Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 811 683
Finance costs 840 788
Liabilities no longer required written back 22 -
Provision for doubtful debts/ bad debts/ written off 19 26
Loss/ ( Gain) on sale of properties, plant & equipment (12) 17
Interest income 26 (25)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Operating profit before working capital changes 2583 2826

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories 952 646
Trade receivables (1114) (1656)
Other current & non current assets 473 (340)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables (1325) 1178
Other current & non current liabilities 770 946
Provisions 35 17

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Cash Generated From Operations 2374 3617

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Income tax (paid) /refund (net) (313) (226)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 2061 3391

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
B. Cash flow from investing activities:

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipments ( including CWIP) (2207) (1045)
Investment in biological assets (11) (24)
Proceeds from sale of properties, plant and equipment 59 30
Interest received (26) 25

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) (2185) (1014)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
C. Cash flow from financing activities:

Repayment of borrowings 961 (1203)
Repayment of lease liabilities (103) -
Finance costs paid (840) (788)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Net cash flow used in financing activities ( C) 18 (1991)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Net increase / (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) (106) 386
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 461 75

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 355 461

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
1 . The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘indirect method’ as set out in Indian Accounting

Standard 7 ‘ Statement of Cash Flows’.
2. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to confirm to the current year’s classification.
The accompanying notes 1 to 41 are integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of Milkfood Ltd
For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 015260N Harmesh Mohan Sood Asha Gadi Anil Girotra

Director Director Director
SARTHAK MADAAN 07951620 00110734 00110631
Partner
Membership No.: 547131
Place : New Delhi Rakesh Thakur Sanjeev Kothiala Sudhir Avasthi
Date : 27th June 2020 Company Secretary C.F.O. C.E.O.
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NOTE 1 . CORPORATE INFORMATION & SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Milkfood Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of
the Indian Companies Act. The registered office of the Company is located at P.O. Bahadurgarh-147021 Distt. Patiala
(Punjab), India. Its shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The Company is primarily engaged in the
manufacture and sale of dairy products. The company has two manufacturing locations, one in the state of Punjab at
Patiala and one in the state of Uttar Pradesh at Moradabad.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation and compliance with Ind AS

(i) The Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) in India and complied with the accounting standards as notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read together with Rule 4A of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, to the extent
applicable, and the presentation requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) These financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on June 27, 2020.

(iii) Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the relevant dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the end of that date. Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

Non- monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

2.2 Current versus non-current classification

All assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non current considering the operating cycle of 12
months.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non –current assets and liabilities respectively.

2.3 Basis of measurement

The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using deemed cost convention and
on an accrual method of accounting, except for defined benefit plans which have been measured at actuarial
valuation as required by relevant Ind ASs.

2.4 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assets or paid to transfer a liabilities in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and / or disclosed in these
financial statement is determined on such a basis.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, which are described as follows ; level I - III

Level I input

Level I input are quoted price in active market for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date, A quoted market in an active market provided the most reliable evidence of fair value and is
used without adjustment to measure fair value whenever available, with limited exception. If an entity hold a position
in a single assets or liabilities and the assets or liabilities is traded in an active market, the fair value of assets or
liabilities held by the entity, even if the market normal daily trading volume is not sufficient to absorb the quantity
held and placing orders to sell the position in a single transaction might affect the quoted price.

Level II input

Level II input are input other than quoted market prices included within level I that are observable for the assets or
liabilities either directly or indirectly.

Level II inputs include:

- quoted price for similarly assets or liabilities in active market.

- quoted price for identical or similar assets or liabilities in market that are not active.

- input other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities , for example –interest rate and
yield curve observable at commonly quoted interval.

- implied volatilise.
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- credit spreads.

- input that are derived principally from or corroborated market data correlation or other means (‘market
corroborated inputs’).

Level III input

Level III inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs are used to measure fair value
to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing for situations in which there is little,
if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date. An entity develops unobservable inputs
using the best information available in the circumstances, which might include the entity’s own data, taking into
account all information about market participant assumptions that is reasonably available.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

2.5 Functional and presentation currency

These Ind AS Financial Statements are prepared in Indian Rupee which is the Company’s functional currency. All
financial information presented in Rupees has been rounded to the nearest lakh.

2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Property, plant and equipment

The Company had applied Ind AS 16 with retrospective effect for all of its property, plant and equipment as at
the transition date, viz., 1 April 2016.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, attributable borrowing cost and any other directly attributable costs of bringing
an asset to working condition and location for its intended use. It also includes the present value of the
expected cost for the decommissioning and removing of an asset and restoring the site after its use, if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, are normally charged to the statements of profit and loss in the period in which the costs
are incurred. Major inspection and overhaul expenditure is capitalized if the recognition criteria are met.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost
is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as
incurred.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is scrapped or otherwise disposed off, the cost and related
deprecation are removed from the books of account and resultant profit or loss, if any, is reflected in statement
of Profit & Loss.

(ii) Capital work in progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in capital work in progress account. At the point when an
asset is capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the cost of construction is transferred
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment. Costs associated with the commissioning of an
asset are capitalised when the asset is available for use but incapable of operating at normal levels until the
period of commissioning has been completed. Cost includes financing cost relating to borrowed funds
attributable to construction.

(iii) Depreciation

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the useful life as prescribed in schedule II of
the Companies Act 2013 on the straight-line method from the date the assets are ready for intended use as
described in para (ii) above. Assets in the course of construction and freehold land are not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

• Buildings 30-60 years

• Plant and equipments 20 years*

• Furniture and fixtures 8 -10 years



44

• Vehicles 6 - 10 years ( Instead of 8 – 10 years as prescribed under schedule II)

• Office equipments 3 - 6 years

(Including computer software)

*The management has reassessed the remaining useful life of Plant & Machinery with effect from 1st April
2014 in respect of Plant & Machinery, the company is consistently following the policy of charging depreciation
over 20 years, notwithstanding certification by the Govt. approved valuer (Chartered Engineer) of the useful
life of Plant & Machinery of more than 35 years. This is in pursuance of proviso to sub clause (c) of clause 3
of schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.

Similarly for addition of Plant & Machinery during the year company has estimated the useful life of 20 years
(15 years specified in Schedule II) based upon the certificate of suppliers / manufacturers of Plant & Machinery
obtained in earlier years.

2.7 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. The Company currently does not
have any intangible assets with indefinite useful life. Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates

2.8 Impairment of Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an assets or a
group of assets (cash generating unit) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset or cash generating unit is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any). If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the entity should determine the recoverable
amount of the Cash Generated Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

It is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset if:

• The asset’s Value in use (VIU) cannot be estimated to be close to its fair value less cost to sell(FLVCS).

• The asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. In assessing the value in use,
the estimated future cash flow are discounted at their present value using the pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of time value of money and the risks specific to the assets for which the estimates of
future cash flow have not been adjusted .

If the recoverable amount of an assets (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the assets (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the statement of Profit & Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss recognized immediately in the
statement of Profit & Loss.

2.9 Cash and Cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above.

2.10 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contact that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

(i) Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a Company becomes a party to the contractual
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provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and Loss.

(ii) Subsequent measurement of financial assets:

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place. All recognised financial
assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets :

The Company derecognises a financial asset when and only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized
in the Statement of Profit and loss on disposal of that financial asset.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised
cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits and trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or
another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

(v) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities:

All the financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method
or at fair value through profit and loss. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

(vi) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such on exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss, net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value except scrap and by products which are valued
at net realisable value. Costs comprises as follow:
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(i) Raw materials: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

(ii) Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis. In pursuance of IND AS-2 indirect production overheads (estimated
by the Management) have been allocated for ascertainment of cost.

(iii) Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(iv) Obsolete inventories are identified and written down to net realisable value. Slow moving and defective
inventories are identified and provided to net realisable value. Inventories (including whey powder - by product)
are valued on lower of cost or net realizable value. In pursuance of IND AS-2 indirect production overheads
(estimated by the Management) have been allocated for ascertainment of cost.

2.13 Retirement Benefits

Company follows IND AS-19 as detailed below:-

(a) Short-term benefits are recognized as expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit & Loss
of the year in which the related service is rendered.

(b) Company provides bonus to eligible employees as per Bonus Act 2016 and accordingly liability is provided on
actual cost at the end of the year.

(c) Provident Fund:

The eligible employees of the company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, a defined
contribution plan in which both employees and the company make monthly contributions at a specified
percentage of the covered employee’s salary. The contributions as specified under the law are paid to the
respective Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the Central Provident Fund under the State Pension
Scheme.

(d) The Company has an obligation towards gratuity a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees.
The plan provides for a lumpsum payment to employees at retirement/determination of service on the basis of
15 days terminal salary for each completed year of service subject to maximum amount of Rs. 20 Lacs.

Company’s liability towards gratuity and compensated absences is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the plan assets (excluding net interest), is
reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income
(OCI) in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognized in the other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognized
in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the period to the defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

• Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost as well as gains and losses on curtailments
and settlements);

• Net interest expense or income; and

• Remeasurement

2.14 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable taking in to account contractually defined terms of payment excluding
others taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. Specific recognition criteria described below must
also be met before revenue is recognized.

(a) Export sales are recognized on the basis of date of bill of lading.

(b) Export entitlements i.e. duty free scrip and duty draw back are accounted for on the basis of export of goods
on FOB value determined for custom purpose.

(c) Conversion charges are recognized on completion of jobs.

(d) Interest Income is recorded on time proportion basis using the effective rate of Interest (EIR).
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2.15 Manufacturing policy

The main raw material of the company is milk, which is used to produce Pure Ghee and various types of Milk
Powders. For the last few years, the company has changed its policy to produce Pure Ghee and Milk Powders which
conforms to the quality standards adopted by the company consistent with its brand image. Quantities of Pure
Ghee and Milk Powders are purchased and processed in the plant to give effect to the manufacturing policy and
produce a product of high quality on consistent basis. Company has utilized its facilities for conversion of Milk to
Ghee / Butter & Milk Powder on job works basis.

2.16 Taxation

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses.

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except:

When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which
case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable.

When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included, the net amount of tax recoverable from,
or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the
form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is
probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

2.17 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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2.18 Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign Currency Transactions involving export sales are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency on the customs
rate on the date of dispatch of goods. The difference between the rates recorded and the rates on the date of actual
realization is transferred to difference in exchange fluctuation account .At the year end, the balances are converted
at the year end rate and difference if any between the book balance and converted amount are transferred to the
exchange fluctuation account. The premium or discount arising at the inception of a forward exchange contract is
amortized as expenses / income over the life of the contract. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of
such a forward contract is recognized as income / expenses for the period. Non-monetary items that are measured
in historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

2.19 Earning per shares

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit and loss
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares

2.20 Segment Reporting

The company is operating under a single segment i.e., “Dairy Products- comprising Ghee, Milk Powder, Casein,
Whey powder and Dairy whitener” and therefore there are no reportable segments as per IND AS-108 “Segment
Reporting” issued under section 133 of Companies Act 2013 read with rules 4A of Companies ( Indian Accounting
Standards) rules 2015.

2.21 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, whereby profit /
(loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past
or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segregated based on the available information

2.22 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company; or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

2.23 Leases

Leases under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. When acquired, such assets are capitalized at fair value or present value of the minimum lease
payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments under operating leases are recognised
as an expense on a straight line basis in the statement of profit and loss over the lease term except where the lease
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation.

2.24 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the
period in which is known/materialised.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are
included in the following notes:

(i) Property, Plant and Equipments –

(ii) Intangible assets -

(iii) Taxes on income -

(iv) Retirement and other employee benefits -
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Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended March 31, 2020

A. Equity share capital:
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up (Share of Rs. 10 each)

Particulars No. of shares (Rs. in Lakhs)

At 31 March 2018 4,886,440 489

Issued during the year - -

At 31 March 2019 4,886,440 489

Issued during the year - -

At 31 March 2020 4,886,440 489

B. Other equity  (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  Reserve & Surplus Total

Retained Securities
Earnings Premium

Balance as at 1st April, 2018 8,661 670 9,331

Profit for the year 1,024 - 1,024

Other comprehensive income for the year (net) (15) - (15)

Balance as at 31st March, 2019 9,670 670 10,340

Profit for the year 839 - 839

Other comprehensive income for the year (net) 1 - 1

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 10,510 670 11,180

The accompanying notes 1 to 41 are integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of Milkfood Ltd

For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 015260N Harmesh Mohan Sood Asha Gadi Anil Girotra

Director Director Director
SARTHAK MADAAN 07951620 00110734 00110631
Partner
Membership No.: 547131

Place : New Delhi Rakesh Thakur Sanjeev Kothiala Sudhir Avasthi
Date : 27th June 2020 Company Secretary C.F.O. C.E.O.
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MILKFOOD LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

3. Property, plant and equipment
A. Tangible Assets (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Land Building Furniture & Computers & Vehicles Plant & Total
 Fixtures * Peripherals Equipment

(I) At cost or deemed cost
As at 1 April 2018 7948 2875 102 105 793 5,675 17,498
Additions - 72 7 5 205 732 1,021
Disposals - - - - 75 35 110

As at 31 March 2019 7,948 2,947 109 110 923 6,372 18,409
Additions 183 347 4 6 298 1,379 2,217
Disposals - - - - 186 8 194

As at 31 March 2020 8,131 3,294 113 116 1,034 7,744 20,432

(II) Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2018 - 218 17 12 277 642 1,166
Charge for the year - 133 9 11 187 343 683
Deductions - - - - 38 23 61

As at 31 March 2019 - 351 26 23 426 962 1,789
Charge for the year - 139 10 12 148 389 698
Deductions - - - - 145 1 146

As at 31 March 2020 - 490 37 35 429 1,350 2,341
Net block Value (I) - (II)
As at 31 March 2020 8,131 2,804 76 81 605 6,394 18,091
As at 31 March 2019 7,948 2,596 83 87 497 5,411 16,621

(B) Capital work in progress:

As at 31 March, 2020 163
As at 31 March, 2019 173

(C) Right of use

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Balance as at beginning of the year - -
Recognised on account of adoption of IND AS 116 (Leases) in respect of building. 279 -
Additions - -
Deletion - -
Depreciation 113 -

Balance as at end of the year 166 -

Footnotes:

(i) For details of Property, plant and equipment charged as security of borrowings. Refer Note 16.

(ii) Estimated amount of capital contracts remaining to be executed is Rs. 56 Lakhs (Year 2019 Rs. 225 Lakhs).

(iii) * includes office equipments.

(iv) Term Loan interest of Rs. 35.69 Lakhs, Salary & consultancy of Rs. 25 Lakhs has been capitalized in Plant & Machinery
during the year.
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Note 4 Biological assets

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Trees & Plantation 230 219

Total 230 219

Footnotes:

Categorized as biological asset on the basis of certificate of agricultural scientist that trees have attained sufficient growth for
sale and net realisable value is not less than the carrying amount as per Ind AS - 41.

Note 5. Financial assets - Investment

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Investment in equity shares - unquoted
(a) MFL Trading Pvt. Ltd 10000 equity shares of 1 1

10 each (wholly owned subsidiary company)
(b) National saving certificates / Deposits (i) 2 1

Total 3 2

Footnotes:
(i) Pledged with government authorities towards fulfillment of statutory obligations.

Note 6. Trade receivable

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 3,304 2,199
Doubtful 28 19

3,332 2,218

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 28 9

3,304 2,209
Net Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good 3,304 2,199
Doubtful - 10

3,304 2,209

Current 3,286 2,199
Non-current (ii) 18 10

Footnotes:
(i) In view of insignifcant amount of bad debts and timely recovery in earlier years, allowance for expected credit loss is

made on the simlified approach of provision based in earlier years.
(ii) Current year figure represent due from Canteen Stores Department outstanding for more than one year. Management is

of the view that this amount is good for recovery and will be recovered in F.Y. 2020-21. Hence no provision is made.
(iii) No trade receivables are due from directors and other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other

person, or from firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
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Note 7. Deposits, loan & advances

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good (i) 92 113

(b) Loans and advances to employees (ii) 14 3
Unsecured, considered good

Total 106 116

Footnotes:
(i) Includes Rs 73 Lakhs with Govt departments and are shown at carrying amount. In respect of security deposits with non

Govt. departments of Rs 19 Lakhs given to various parties, fair value has not been computed in view of insignificant
effect. Further these amounts are considered good for recovery as certified by the management.

(ii) Considered good for recovery as certified by the management.

Note 8. Other non current assets

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Prepaid expenses 14 23
(b) Capital advances 21 36
(c) Deposit with sales tax authorities (i) 84 81
(d) MAT credit receivable (ii) 837 322
(e) Others receivable (iii) 6 6

Total 962 468

Footnotes:
(i) Deposits with Sales Tax Authorities amounting to Rs. 81 Lakhs represent the amount deposited as a pre-condition for

preferring appeal. Management, based upon the legal advice, is of the view that appeals will be decided in favour of
company and hence are recoverable.

(ii) MAT credit of Rs. 515 Lakhs (Rs. 302 Lakhs pertaining to previous year) is recognised during the year u/s 115JB of the
Income Tax Act.

(iii) Represent Insurance claim receivable, considered good for recovery by the management.

Note 9. Inventories

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Raw materials 32 15
(b) Work-in-progress 599 970
(c ) Finished goods 4,679 5,053
(d) Stores and spares 355 491
(e) Packing materials (i) 192 280

Total 5,857 6,809

Footnotes:
(i) Includes non moving / slow moving stock of Packing material of Rs 10 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs.45 Lakhs). Management is of the

view that the non moving stock will be utilised / disposed off in the financial year 2020-21. Adjustment if any shall be
made in the subsequent year.

(ii) For details of inventories provided as security for borrowings. Refer Note 19.
(iii) The mode of valuation of inventories has been described in Note 2.12.
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Note 10. Loan

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Loan to employees / others
(Unsecured, considered good) (i) 33 80

Total 33 80

Footnotes:
(i) Loan to employees/others (including static balance of Rs.11 lakhs) are considered good for recovery within 12 months of

reporting date as certified by the management.

Note 11. Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Cash on hand 6 2
(b) Balances with banks

(i) In current accounts 2 6
(ii) In deposit accounts - 2
(iii)Margin accounts (i) 347 451

Total 355 461

Footnotes:
(i) Towards bank guarantee given to govt. departments/corporations for performance obligations. Management is of view

that amount is recoverable.

Note 12. Financial Assets - others

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Interest receivable 11 13
(b) Others receivable 3 1
(c) Milk processing receivable (i) 91 -

Total 105 14

Footnotes:
(i) Represent job work executed pending dispatch.

Note 13. Other current assets

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Prepaid expenses - unsecured, considered good 81 75
(b) Advance to suppliers - unsecured, considered good (i) 147 470
(c) Balances with statutory / government authorities (ii) 295 485
(d) Income tax refund (iii) 17 17
(e) Earnest money deposit with Govt. Department 60 40

Total 600 1,087

Footnotes:
(i) Includes amount of Rs. 114 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 114 Lakhs) due from supplier from earlier years against supplies to the

company. Amount is confirmed by the supplier and in the opinion of managment will be adjusted / recovered in F.Y. 2020-
21. It also includes Rs.16 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 12 Lakhs) from Ispace Developers Private Limited. No interest is charged as the
property of Ispace Developers Private Limited is kept as security with the bank.
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(ii) Represent GST input credit (net).
(iii) Refund of Rs.16.29 Lakhs is adjusted by the department against demand of AY 2007-08 which has not been cancelled

due to non credit of Appeal effect of CIT(A) order. Company has filed a letter with IT Department asking for refund.

Note 14. Share capital

Particulars As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

Number of (Rs. in Number of (Rs. in
shares Lakhs) shares Lakhs)

(a) Authorised
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 7,500,000 750 7,500,000 750
Cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs. 100 each 50,000 50 50,000 50

Total 7,550,000 800 7,550,000 800

(b) Issued
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 4,887,890 489 4,887,890 489

(c) Subscribed and Paid up
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 4,886,440 489 4,886,440 489
Less: Calls in arrears 0 0
(Rs.0.19 lakhs on 2875 partly paid shares ) 4,886,440 489 4,886,440 489
Add :Amount paid on forfeited shares 0 0
(Rs.0.07 lakhs on 1450 shares )

Total 4,886,440 489 4,886,440 489

(d) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount
outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year :
At the beginning of the year 4,886,440 489 4,886,440 489
Issued during the year - - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 4,886,440 489 4,886,440 489

Footnotes:
(i) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is

eligible for one vote per share.
(ii) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the

company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

(iii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

Number of Percentage of Number of Percentage of
shares held shares held shares held shares held

Equity shares

Mr. Karamjit Jaiswal 1,700,024 34.79% 1,700,024 34.79%

Ms Roshini Sanah Jaiswal 700,060 14.33% 700,060 14.33%

Dhanvani Investment Pvt. Ltd. 560,861 11.48% 560,861 11.48%

Sudha Commercial Co. Ltd. 489,103 10.01% 489,103 10.01%

Jupiter India Fund 317,434 6.50% 265,695 5.44%
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Note 15. Other equity

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Securities premium (i) 670 670
(b) Retained earnings (ii) 10,510 9,670

Total 11,180 10,340

Footnotes:
(i) Where the Company issues shares at premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of

the premium received on those shares is transferred to “Securities Premium account”. The company may issue fully paid-
up bonus shares to its members out of balance lying in the securites premium account and the company can also use the
premium for buy-back of shares.

(ii) Includes revaluation reserve of Rs. 5,286 Lakhs (PY Rs. 5,327 Lakhs) [Net of increase in value of Land & Building of Rs
8,530 Lakhs and decrease in the value of Plant & Machinery of Rs 3,080 Lakhs as at 01.04.2016 after adjusting accumulated
depreciation of Rs. 164 Lakhs (PY Rs. 123 Lakhs) on revalued figure].

(iii) The disaggregation of changes in each type of reserve, retained earnings and other comprehensive income are disclosed
in Statement of Changes in Equity.

Note 16. Long-term borrowings

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) From Banks: Secured at amortised cost
Rupee term loan 688 582

Total (a) 688 582

(b) From Banks: Unsecured at amortised cost
Rupee term loan 50 61

Total (b) 50 61

(c) From Others: Secured at amortised cost
Vehicle loan 136 145

Total (c) 136 145

(d) From Others-Unsecured at amortised cost
Rupee term loan 290 148

Total (d) 290 148

Grand Total (a+ b+c+d) 1,163 936
Less: Unamortised finance cost 1 3

1,162 933
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Footnotes:-
(i) Detail of loans:

Non Current Current Maturity Total

a) From Banks: Secured at amortised cost
Canara Bank @ 11.55% to 13.55% p.a. payable by May 2022 534 480 1,014

(274) (156) (430)
SBI @ 11.55% p.a. payable by Jun 2021 51 260 311

(308) (266) (574)
b) From Banks: Unsecured at amortised cost

IDFC First Bank Ltd. 61 30 91
@15.50% p.a payable by Apr,2021 - - -
ICICI Bank Ltd 23 24 47
@ 8.97% p.a payable by Jan ,2022 - - -
HDFC Bank Ltd 18 24 43
@ 15.50% p.a payable by Nov ,2021 - - -
Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd @15% p.a. payable by April 2021 50 100 150

(61) (149) (210)
c) From Others: Secured at amortised cost

NBFC @ 8.39% to 10.06% p.a. payable by Feb 2023 136 208 344
(145) (172) (317)

d) From Others-Unsecured at amortised cost
NBFC @ 15.50% to 18% payable by July 2022. 290 233 522

(148) (60) (208)

Total 1,163 1,358 2,522
(936) (803) (1,739)

Figures in bracket relates to the previous year.
(ii) The Loan of Canara Bank of Rs. 15.60 Crores (As per MCA 21) is secured by an exclusive charge on fixed assets to the

extent of Rs.19.50 Crores and on pari-passu basis with State Bank of India on balance fixed assets including equitable
morgage of Land and Building by deposit of title deed in respect of Patiala and Moradabad Plants.

Note 17. Financial liabilities - others

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Security deposits (i) 6,107 5,826
(b) Other payable (ii) 1 1

Total 6,108 5,827

Footnotes:
(i) Security deposits of Rs. 6105 lakhs are confirmed by the management and consignees/suppliers and are payable on

demand after 31.03.2021.
(ii) Payable to ex-employee pending final decision of court.

Note 17A. Financial liabilities - other

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Lease Liabilities - (current) 115 -
Lease Liabilities - (non current) 61 -
[In respect of building taken on lease (Refer note 39 & 2.23)]

Total 175 -
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Note 18. Provisions
(A) Non current

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity 184 179
Compensated absences 22 28

Total 206 207

(B) Current

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity 109 79
Compensated absences 21 15

Total 130 94

Footnotes:
Provision for Gratuity and compensated absences have been made in terms of IND AS-19.(Refer note no. 33).

Note 19. Financial liabilities - short -term borrowings

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

From bank - secured
Cash credit (i) 4,888 4,157

Total 4,888 4,157

Footnotes:
(i) Cash Credit sanctioned by State Bank of India/Canara Bank are secured by charge on pari passu basis on all present &

future current assets (excluding vehicles) including stocks and book debts and extension of charge on pari-passu basis
on the fixed assets of the company, equitable mortgage of land & building at Gurgoan owned by Ispace Developers
Private Limited and exclusive charge on company’s Brand “MILKFOOD”.

Note 20. Financial liabilities - Trade payable

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (i) 38 -
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than above 3,106 4,448

Total 3,144 4,448

Footnote:
(i) This information as required to be disclosed under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 has been

determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. As per
information given dues of MSME suppliers are paid within the stipulated time and hence no provision for interest is made.
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Note 21. Other financial liabilities - current

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Current maturities of long term debts (i) 1,356 799
(b) Public deposits with interest (ii) 7 7
(c) Outstanding expenses including salary & wages etc. (iii) 125 165
(d) Others 12 9

Total 1,500 980

Footnotes:
(i) Net of unamortised finance cost of Rs. 2 Lakhs (P.Y.Rs 4). Refer Note No.16
(ii) Includes Rs.1.50 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 1.65 Lakhs) towards principal amount and Rs. 5.19 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 5.46 Lakhs) towards

interest in respect of unclaimed matured deposits.
(iii) Includes rent payable for earlier years of Rs. 2.82 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 2.82 Lakhs) pending court case.

Note 22. Other current liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Statutory remittances (Contributions to PF and 52 75
ESIC, Withholding Taxes, etc.)

(b) Advances from customers 57 65

Total 109 140

Note 23. Revenue from operations

Particulars Footnote For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Sale of products (i) 54,066 52,401
(b) Other operating revenues (ii) 1,075 658

Revenue from operations 55,141 53,059

Footnotes:

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(i) Sale of products comprises:
- Ghee 53,901 52,174
- Milk powder 165 227

Total - Sale of products 54,066 52,402

(ii) Other operating revenues comprises:
Sale of scrap 30 41
Conversion charges of milk to powder & butter 1,045 617

Total - Other operating revenues 1075 658
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Note 24. Other income

Particulars Footnote For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Interest income on bank deposits 26 23
(b) Interest on refund of taxes - 2
(c) Others (i) 23 6
(d) Profit on sale of assets 12 -

Total 61 31

Footnotes:
(i) Includes an amount of Rs. 21 Lakhs ( P.Y. Rs.Nil ) written back in respect of liabilities no longer required.

Note 25. Cost of material consumed

Particulars Footnote For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Raw materials
Inventories at the beginning of the year 15 16
Add: Purchases 46051 43814
Less: Inventories at the end of the year 32 15

Consumption (a) (i) 46034 43815

(b) Packing materials
Inventories at the beginning of the year 280 232
Add: Purchases 1083 1411
Less: Inventories at the end of the year 192 280

Consumption(b) 1171 1363
Total (a+b) 47205 45178

Footnotes:

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(i) Raw material consumed comprises:
Milk 547 1,048
Fat & butter 45,473 42,678
Milk powder 13 80
Others 2 9

Total 46,034 43,815
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Note 26. Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods 4,679 5,053
Work-in-progress 599 970

5,278 6,023
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods 5,053 4,982
Work-in-progress 970 1,692

6,023 6,674

Net (increase) / decrease 745 651

Note 27 Employee benefit expenses

Particulars Footnote For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Salaries, wages and other benefits (i) 1884 1833
(b) Contributions to provident funds / ESI 107 86
(c) Gratuity & compensated absences (ii) 48 47
(d) Staff welfare expenses 46 51

Total 2085 2017

Footnotes:
(i) (a) Includes bonus of Rs. 37.37 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 26.10 Lakhs) under the payment of Bonus Act 2015.

(b) Net of recovery of Rs. 396 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. Nil ) from KMP.
(ii) Provision for Gratuity and compensated absences have been made during the year in terms of IND AS-19 (Refer note no.

35).

Note 28. Finance costs

Particulars Footnote For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Interest expense
on term loans 244 234
on Cash Credit 503 499
on late deposit of income tax 8 -
on lease liabilities (ROU) 25 -

(b) Other borrowing costs (Bank and other financing charges) (i) 60 55

Total 840 788

Footnotes:
(i) Net of recovery of interest of Rs. 12 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. Nil).



61

Note 29. Depreciation & amortisation expenses

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note no. 2 and 3A.) 698 683
b) Amortisation of right-of-use assets (Refer Note 3C & 2.23) 113 -

Total 811 683

Note 30. Other expenses

Particulars Footnote For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Consumption of stores and spare parts 66 81
Power and fuel 944 684
Repairs and maintenance:
- Building 16 6
- Machinery 66 60
Inventory written off 37 49
Freight & forwarding expenses 376 375

Commission 135 39
Selling & distribution expenses 48 84

Advertisment expenses 33 59
Rates and taxes 47 64
Rent 59 170
Auditors remuneration (i) 14 12
Office maintenance & house keeping 172 144
Legal & professional 122 96
Insurance expenses 74 65
Travelling & hotel expenses 86 72
Vehicle expenses 60 66
Watch & ward expenses 36 30
Postage & telephone expenses 23 22
Provision for doubtful debts 19 9
Net loss on sale of property, plant & equipment - 17
Contribution for corporate social responsibility (CSR) (ii) 15 7
Miscellaneous expenses (iii) 192 225

Total 2639 2436

Footnote:

(i) Auditors remuneration

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

- Audit fee 12 12
- Certification 1 -
- Reimbursement of expenses 1 2

Total 14 14

(ii) Amount required for CSR contributed to PM Cares Fund.
(iii) Includes Sundry expenses of Rs.17 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 19 lakhs), Printing stationery Rs. 8 Lakh (P.Y. Rs. 9 lakh), Guest

house expenses Rs. 9 Lakh (P.Y.  Rs. 5 lakh) and Income Tax others Rs. 39.94 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 39.59 Lakhs).
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Note 31 (A). Current tax liabilities (net)

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Current tax liabilities (net of advance tax of Rs. 230 lakhs and TDS of Rs. 15 lakhs) - 50

Total - 50

Note 31 (B). Current tax assets (net)

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Current tax assets (net of tax provision of Rs. 213 lakhs) 43 -

Total 43 -

Note 31 (C) Tax expenses

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Income tax related to items charged or credited
to statement of profit and loss during the year:

(a) Statement of profit and loss
Current tax 213 295
Earlier year tax Expenses 7 17
MAT credit (515) (322)
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 333 323

Total 38 313

(b) Other comprehensive income
Deferred tax charge/(credit) on
Re-measurement of defined benefit plan 1 (7)

Total 39 306

Reconciliation of tax expense with accounting
profit multiplied by statutory income tax rate:
Accounting profit before income tax 877 1,337
Applicable tax rate 33.38% 33.38%
Computed tax expenses 293 446
Effect of prior period adjustments in deferred tax 11 (146)
Adjustment recognised in current year in relation to tax of prior year 7 17
Income recognised related to MAT credit (Net) (302) (27)
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes
Other non-deductible expenses 20 25
Others including differential rate of tax (MAT) 10 (10)

Income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss account 39 306
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Note 31 (D) Deferred tax (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31 March, 2020

As at Recognised in As at 31

01 April, 2019 Profit & Loss OCI March, 2020
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
Property, plant and equipment 1,008 109 - 1,117
Others - 56 - 56

(A) 1,008 164 - 1,172

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Carried forward loss / unabsorbed depreciation 308 248 - 60
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 101 (12) 1 112
Disallowances under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 5 (1) - 6
Provision for doubtful debts - (9) 9
Others - (59) - 59

(B) 414 167 1 246

Deferred tax liability (net) 594 331 1 926

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31 March, 2019

As at Recognised in As at 31

01 April, 2018 Profit & Loss OCI March, 2019

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
Property, plant and equipment 1,187 (179) - 1,008
Others - - - -

(A) 1,187 (179) - 1,008

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Carried forward loss / Unabsorbed depreciation 820 512 - 308
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 88 (14) - 101
Disallowances under Section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 - (2) - 2
Others - (3) - 3

(B) 908 493 - 414

Deferred tax liability (net) 279 314 - 594

Footnote:
(i) Revaluation impact in Land & Building is not considered for computing deferred tax.

Note 32. Earnings per share

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Basic and diluted
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs. in Lakhs) 839 1024
Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos.) 4,886,440 4,886,440
Par value per share ( In Rs.) 10 10
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (in Rs.) 17.15 20.94
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Note 33. Related party disclosures

(A) Details of related parties with whom the company had transactions during the year.

Description of relationship Names of related parties

(a) Enterprises over which KMP, major shareholder Jagatjit Industries Ltd., Pashupati Properties P.Ltd,
is able to exercise significant influence Anjani Estate P.Ltd, Mata Construction & Builders P.Ltd

& Ispace Developers Pvt.Ltd
MFL Trading Pvt Ltd (Wholly owned subsidiary Company)

(b) Key Management Personnel (CEO/CFO/Company Mr Karamjit Jaiswal
Secretery/Directors and their relatives) Ms Roshini Sanah Jaiswal

Mr Sudhir Avasthi (CEO)
Ms Gita Bawa (Independent Director)
Ms Asha Gadi (Independent Director)
Mr Anil Girotra (Independent Director)
Mr Kewal Krishan Kohli (Independent Director)
Mr Lalit Kumar (Director)
Mr Harmesh Mohan Sood (Director)
Mr Sanjeev Kothiala (CFO)
Mr Rakesh K Thakur (CS)

(B) Transactions with related parties during the year along with balances as at year end:

Particulars With Persons With Persons Total
Mentioned in Mentioned in (Rs. in

(a) above (b) above Lakhs)
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Electricity expenses paid 13 - 13
(11) - (11)

Rent (Lease liabilities including interest paid) 76 - 76
(53) - (53)

Advance for Rent & Building Renovation 100 - 100
- - -

Reimbursement of other expenses/ Building Renovation 62 - 62
- - -

Services provided / Interest Income (Refer note 28(i)) - 12 12
(52) - (52)

Sales 12 - 12
(21) - (21)

Loan given - - -
(55) - (55)

Loan repayment - - -
(47) - (47)

Managerial Remuneration {(including sitting fees) - 581 581
Refer note 27(i)(b)}

- (660) (660)
Amount receivable 50 - 50

(57) - (57)

Footnotes:
(i) No amounts have been written off / provided for or written back during the year in respect of amounts receivable from or

payable to related parties.
(ii) Related parties have been identified by the management.
(iii) Rent (lease liability including interest) is certified by the the management as per prevelant market rates and for business

purposes of the company.
(iv) Figures in bracket relates to the previous year.
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Note 34. Contingent liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts*
Sales tax 71 116

Footnotes:
(i) *The company is contesting these demands and the management, based on advise of its advisors, believes that its

position will likely be upheld in the appellate process. No expense has accrued in the standalone financial statements for
these demands raised. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material
adverse effect on the company’s financial position and results of operations. The company does not expect any
reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

(ii) In addition, the company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business.
The company’s management reasonably does not expect that these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and
determined, will have material effect on the company’s results of operations or financial condition.

Note 35. Employee benefits
(A) Defined contribution plans

The company has recognised the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Employers’ contribution to provident fund and family pension fund 101 80

(B) Defined benefit plans
The company operates on one defined benefit plan i.e., gratuity for its employees including Key managerial personnel
except Mr Karamjit Singh Jaiswal and Ms Roshini Sanah Jaiswal. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has
completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed
year of service subject to maximum of Rs. 20 lakhs .

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss:
Under profit and loss section
Current service cost 26 21
Net interest cost 19 16
Past service cost - -

45 37
Under other comprehensive income section
Acturial (gains)/losses
Due to experience adjustments (11) 23
Due to change in assumption 9 (1)

(2) 22
(b) Net liabilities recognised in the balance sheet

Present value of obligation 293 258
Fair value of plant assets -

Funded status (deficit) 293 258

Net liabilities recognised in the balance sheet accounted for as below:
Provision non current (refer note 18 A) 184 179
Provision current (refer note 18 B) 109 79
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Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(c) Present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of obligation at the beginning of year 258 225
Current cost 26 21
Interest cost 19 16
Remeasurement due to
Acturial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience changes (11) 23
Acturial loss/(gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 9 (1)
Past service cost - -
Benefits paid (9) (26)

Present value of defined obligation at the end of the year 293 258

(d) The principal assumptions used in determing
defined benefit obligations:
Discount rate 7.60% 7.52%
Salary increase rate 3.5% to 5% 3.5% to 5%
Attrition rate 5% 5%
Mortality Table IAL 2012-14 IAL 2012-14

Ultimate Ultimate

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

(e) Sensitivity analysis:

For the year ended 31 March, 2020

1% increase 1% decrease

Discount rate (10) (11)
Salary increase rate 11 10
Employee attrition rate 1 1

For the year ended 31 March, 2019

1% increase 1% decrease

Discount rate (9) 9
Salary increase rate 10 (9)
Employee turnover 1 (1)

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable change in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Note: 36. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the company’s operations. The company’s principal financial assets include, trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, bank balances and security deposits that are out of regular business operations.

The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument that will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk i.e. interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as
commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings and trade payables.

i. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate
relates primarily to the company’s borrowings with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on borrowings
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affected. With all other variables held constant, the company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on
floating rate borrowings, as follows:

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease

Impact on profit before tax (64) 64 (63) 63

ii. Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. There does not seem to be any significant risk as transaction in foreign currency
are very few.

As there is no significant foreign currency risk, sensitivity analysis showing impact on profit is not calculated.

iii. Commodity price risk

The company does not have significant risk in raw material price variations. In case of any variation in price, the same
is passed on to customers through appropriate adjustment to selling prices.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty default on its obligations.
The company’s exposure to credit risk arises majorly from trade and other receivables. Other financial assets like security
deposits and bank deposits are mostly with government authorities and nationalised banks and hence, the company does
not expect any credit risk with respect to these financial assets. Trade receivables in respect of sale of ghee , in majority
of cases payment is received in advance and with respect to skimmed milk powder , the sale is institutional and expected
credit loss is too low considering the past record.

(c) Liquidity risk

The company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
borrowings and security from consignment agents. The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company’s
financial liabilities:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Maturities

Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-4 years Total

31-Mar-20
Non-current borrowings - 951 212 1,163
Current borrowings* 4,888 - - 4,888
Trade payables 3,144 - - 3,144
Other financial liabilities** 1,500 6,108 - 7,609

Total 9,532 7,059 212 16,804

31-Mar-19
Non-current borrowings - 647 289 936
Current borrowings* 4,157 - - 4,157
Trade payables 4,448 - - 4,448
Other financial liabilities** 980 5,827 - 6,807

Total 9,586 6,474 289 16,349

* Current borrowings represent working capital loan (Cash credit).
** Includes security deposit taken from supplier and consignment agent which is payable on demand but beyond 12
months from the reporting date as certified by the management and confirmed by the suppliers and consignees.

Note: 37. Capital management
For the purpose of the company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders. The primary objective of the company’s capital management is to
ensure that it maintains a good credit rating and capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.
The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. The company includes within net
debt, all non-current and current borrowings reduced by cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances.
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Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Non-current borrowings 1,162 933
Current maturities of non-current borrowings 1,363 806
Current borrowings 4,888 4,157
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 355 461

Net debt 7,059 5,434

Equity share capital 489 489
Other equity 11,180 10,340

Total capital 11,669 10,829

Gearing ratio 60% 50%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it
meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing borrowings that define capital structure requirements. The breaches
in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any interest-bearing borrowings in the current year.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2020
and March 31, 2019.

Note 38. Fair value
Fair value measurement:

(i) All the financial assets and financial liabilities of the company are carried at amortised cost.

(ii) The management assessed that the carrying values of trade and other receivables, deposit, cash and short term deposits,
other assets, borrowings, trade and other payables reasonably approximate their fair values because these instruments
have short-term maturities.

(iii) It is view of the management that fair value impact of long term security deposits/loan paid or payable would not be
material.

Note 39.
Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases”, applied to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019
using the modified retrospective method. Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been
retrospectively adjusted. On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of Right-of-Use asset (ROU) of
Rs. 279.06 Lakhs and a corresponding lease liability of Rs. 279.06 Lakhs. The effect of this adoption has decreased PAT by Rs.
9.66 Lacs and EPS by INR 0.20 per share. The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term
leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Note 40.
The outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activities globally. The
nationwide lockdown ordered by the Government of India has resulted in further slow down in economic activities and also the
business operations of the Company in terms of sales and production. The management has considered the possible effects
that may result from the pandemic on the recoverability/carrying value of the assets. Based on the current indicators of future
economic conditions and company engaged in dairy business (essential services), the management expects to recover the
carrying amount of the assets, however the management will and continue to closely monitor any material changes to future
economic conditions. Given the uncertainties, the final impact on Company’s assets in future may differ from that estimated as
at the date of approval of these financial results.

Note 41.
Previous year figures have been reclassified/regrouped wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of current
period.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MILKFOOD LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Milkfood Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
“Holding Company”), and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for
the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration
of report of other auditor on separate financial statement of such subsidiary as was audited by the other auditor, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2020, of its consolidated
profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Emphasis of matter:

Attention is drawn to the Note no 4 regarding biological asset, Note no 6(i) & (ii) regarding trade receivable, Note no 7(i)
regarding security deposit, Note no 7(ii) & 10(i) regarding amount due from employees, Note no 8(iii) regarding insurance
claim receivable, Note no 9(i) regarding non/slow moving stock, Note no 13(i) regarding advance to supplier, Note no 17(i)
regarding classification of security deposit received and Note no 33(iii) regarding rent paid.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have
fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group operates in various states within India, exposing it
to a variety of different Central and State Laws, regulations
and interpretations thereof. In this regulatory environment,
there is an inherent risk of litigation and claims.

Consequently, provisions and contingent liability disclosures
may arise from direct and indirect tax proceeding, legal

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our procedures included:

Reviewing the outstanding litigations against the Group for
consistency with the previous years. Enquire and obtain
explanations for movement during the year.

Discussing the status of significant known actual and potential
litigations with the Group’s in-house officials and other senior
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed and based on the audit report of other auditor, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated state of affairs, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and

proceedings including regulatory and other government/
department proceedings, as well as investigations by
authorities and commercial claims.

At March 31, 2020, the Group’s contingent liabilities for legal
matters were Rs. 71 Lakhs (refer Note no 34 to the
consolidated financial statement) and provision for legal
matters aggregated Nil. This represent tax of Rs.71 Lakhs
levied by u/s 47 of Rajasthan Sales Tax Act. 1994. The tax
has been levied on account of non-deposit of sale tax by the
consignment agent of the holding company. Department is of
the view that liability of principal and agent is joint and several.

Management applies significant judgment in estimating the
likelihood of the future outcome in each case when considering
whether, and how much, to provide or in determining the
required disclosure for the potential exposure of each matter.
This is due to the highly complex nature and magnitude of the
legal matters involved along with the fact that resolution of tax
and legal proceedings may span over multiple years, and may
involve protracted negotiation or litigation.

These estimates could change substantially overtime as new
facts emerge as each legal case progresses.

Given the inherent complexity and magnitude of potential
exposures across the Group and the judgment necessary to
estimate the amount of provisions required or to determine
required disclosures, this is a key audit matter.

The outbreak of Covid-19 has caused significant disturbances
and thrown many challenges. The company has two
manufacturing plant location and significant inventory is held
at plants. The company is engaged in essential services (dairy
Business). The management has conducted the physical
verification of inventories at close of the year. These inventories
were also physically verified by the internal auditor subsequent
to the date of Balance Sheet. Inventories constitute a material
item and are a key matter.

During the year under audit company’s other operating revenue
(Conversion Charges of milk to powder and butter) registered
significant increase over the previous year. The company has
entered an agreement with third parties for conversion of milk
to powder and butter at specified rate as per the agreement.
This is a key Audit Matter.

management personnel who have knowledge of these matters
and assessing their responses.

Reading the latest correspondence between the Group and
the various tax/legal authorities and review of correspondence
with / legal opinions obtained by the management, from
external legal advisors, where applicable, for significant
matters and considering the same in evaluating the
appropriateness of the Group’s provisions or disclosures on
such matters.

Examining the Group’s legal expenses and reading the minutes
of the board meetings, in order to ensure that all cases have
been identified.

With respect to tax matters, involving our tax specialists, and
discussing with the Group’s tax officers, their views and
strategies on significant cases, as well as the related technical
grounds relating to their conclusions based on applicable tax
laws.

Assessing the decisions and rationale for provisions held or
for decisions not to record provisions or make disclosures.

For those matters where management concluded that no
provisions should be recorded, considered the adequacy and
completeness of the Group’s disclosures.

Due to Covid-19 lockdown, We could not attend the physical
verification at the close of the year. We attend the physical
stock taking subsequent to the date of balance Sheet. We
adopted and performed the additional procedure of “Roll Back”
to determine the quantity of inventory at close of the year.

We have performed the required audit procedures of
verification of receipt of milk with weigh in slips. Comparison
of actual production with standard production as prescribed
in agreement. We also verified dispatches on the basis on
delivery challan & weigh in slip and Revenue recognized on
the basis of rate prescribed in the agreement. The income
generated on account of conversion is shown in note 23(ii) of
the financial statement.
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consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Holding and subsidiary Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group is responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results
of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entity included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditor regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
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these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of a wholly own subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. Nil
as at March 31, 2020, total revenues of Rs. Nil and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 16,877/- for the year ended on that date,
as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Holding Company’s management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, and our report in terms
of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the audit reports
of other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is
not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors
and the financial statements/financial information certified by the Holding Company’s Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. With respect to matter to be included in the Auditor,s report under section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the reports of the statutory
auditors of subsidiary company, the Group has not paid/provided any managerial remuneration to its directors for the year
ended March 31, 2020. Therefore provision of section 197 (16) are not applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on
separate financial statements of such subsidiary as audited by other auditors, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of aforesaid consolidated financial statement.

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

(c) the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flow dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company taken on record by the
Board of Directors of the holding Company and the report of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary incorporated in
India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary company incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure A”; and

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the
subsidiary, as noted in ‘Other Matters’ paragraph:

i. the Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements;

ii. the Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses;

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Group.

For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 015260N

Sarthak Madaan
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 27-06-2020 Membership number: 547131

UDIN: 20547131AAAAAH9764
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f ) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Milkfood Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as
“the Group”) incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the other auditor of the subsidiary incorporated in India in terms of their
report referred in other matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Group’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on consideration of reports of other auditors as referred in other matters paragraph, the Holding Company
and its a subsidiary incorporated in India have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
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financial reporting and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal
financial control over financial reporting criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Other aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
control over financial reporting in so far as it relates to a subsidiary company, which is company incorporated in India, is based
on corresponding reports of the auditor of such company.

For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 015260N

Sarthak Madaan
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 27-06-2020 Membership number: 547131

UDIN: 20547131AAAAAH9764
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31st March, 2020
Particulars Notes As at As at

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)  (Rs. in Lakhs)

A ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3A 18,091 16,621
Capital work in progress 3B 163 173
Right -of -use -assets 3C 166 -
Biological assets 4 230 219
Financial assets
- Investments 5 2 1
- Trade receivable 6 18 10
- Deposit, loans & advances 7 106 116
Other non-current assets 8 962 468

-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
Total non - current assets 19,738 17,608-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------

2 Current assets
Inventories 9 5,857 6,809
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 6 3,286 2,199
- Loans 10 33 79
- Cash and cash equivalents 11 355 461
- Others 12 105 14
Other current assets 13 600 1,087
Current tax assets (net) 31B 43 -

-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
Total current assets 10,279 10,649-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
TOTAL ASSETS 30,017 28,257============================= =============================

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ funds

Equity share capital 14 489 489
Other equity 15 11,178 10,338
Non controling interest - -

-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
Total equity 11,667 10,827-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------

2 Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 16 1,162 933
- Other financial liabilities 17 6,108 5,827
- Lease liabilities 17A 115 -
Deffered tax liabilities (net) 31C 926 594
Provisions 18 A 206 207

-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
Total non - current liabilities 8,517 7,561-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------

3 Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 19 4,888 4,157
- Lease laibilities 17A 61 -
- Trade payables 20

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 38 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than above 3,106 4,448

- Other financial liabilities 21 1,500 980
Other current liabilities 22 110 140
Provisions 18B 130 94
Current tax liabilities (net) 31A - 50

-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
Total current liabilities 9,833 9,869-------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 30,017 28,257============================= =============================

Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes 1 to 41 are integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of Milkfood Ltd
For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 015260N Harmesh Mohan Sood Asha Gadi Anil Girotra

Director Director Director
SARTHAK MADAAN 07951620 00110734 00110631
Partner
Membership No.: 547131
Place : New Delhi Rakesh Thakur Sanjeev Kothiala Sudhir Avasthi
Date : 27th June 2020 Company Secretary C.F.O. C.E.O.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31st March, 2020

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Note No. 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

(Rs. in Lakhs)  (Rs. in Lakhs)

1 Revenue from operations 23 55,141 53,059
2 Other income 24 61 31

-------------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------------
3 Total revenue (1+2) 55,202 53,090

============================= =============================
4 Expenses

(a) Cost of materials consumed 25 47,205 45,178
(b) Changes in inventories of finished 26 745 651

goods and work-in-progress
(c) Employee benefits expenses 27 2,085 2,017
(d) Finance cost 28 840 788
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 29 811 683
(f) Other expenses 30 2,639 2,437

-------------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------------
Total expenses 54,325 51,754

============================= =============================
5 Profit before tax (3-4) 877 1,336
6 Tax expense/ (credit) (net)

(a) Current tax 31B 213 295
(b) Earlier year tax expenses 7 17
(c) MAT credit recognition (515) (322)
(d) Deferred tax 31C 333 323

-------------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------------
Total tax expenses / (credit) 38 313

-------------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------------
7 Profit/(loss) for the period (5-6) 839 1,023

============================= =============================
8 Other comprehensive income:

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 2 (22)
Tax impact on re-measurement gain/ (losses) (1) 7
on defined benefit plans

-------------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------------
Total other comprehensive income/ (losses) for the year (net of tax) 1 (15)

-------------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------------
Total comprehensive income for the year 840 1,008

============================= =============================
9 Earnings per share (of Rs. 10/- each):

Basic and diluted - in Rs. 32 17.15 20.92

Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes 1 to 41 are integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of Milkfood Ltd
For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 015260N Harmesh Mohan Sood Asha Gadi Anil Girotra

Director Director Director
SARTHAK MADAAN 07951620 00110734 00110631
Partner
Membership No.: 547131
Place : New Delhi Rakesh Thakur Sanjeev Kothiala Sudhir Avasthi
Date : 27th June 2020 Company Secretary C.F.O. C.E.O.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31st March, 2020

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)  (Rs. in Lakhs)

A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Net profit before taxation 877 1336

Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 811 683
Finance costs 840 788
Liabilities no longer required written back 22 -
Provision for doubtful debts/ bad debts/ written off 19 26
Loss/ ( Gain) on sale of properties , plant & equipment (12) 17
Interest income 26 (25)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Operating profit before working capital changes 2583 2825

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories 952 646
Trade receivables (1114) (1656)
Other current & non current assets 473 (339)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables (1325) 1178
Other current & non current liabilities 770 946
Provisions 35 17

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Cash Generated From Operations 2374 3617

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Income tax (paid) /refund (net) (313) (226)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 2061 3391

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
B. Cash flow from investing activities:

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipments ( including CWIP) (2207) (1045)
Investment in biological assets (11) (24)
Proceeds from sale of properties, plant and equipment 59 30
Interest received (26) 25

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) (2185) (1014)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
C. Cash flow from financing activities:

Repayment of borrowings 961 (1203)
Repayment of lease laibilities (103) -
Finance costs paid (840) (788)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Net cash flow used in financing activities ( C) 18 (1991)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Net increase / (decrease ) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) (106) 386
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 461 75

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 355 461

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------------------

1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘indirect method’ as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 ‘
Statement of Cash Flows’.

2. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to confirm to the current year’s classification.

The accompanying notes 1 to 41 are integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of Milkfood Ltd
For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 015260N Harmesh Mohan Sood Asha Gadi Anil Girotra

Director Director Director
SARTHAK MADAAN 07951620 00110734 00110631
Partner
Membership No.: 547131
Place : New Delhi Rakesh Thakur Sanjeev Kothiala Sudhir Avasthi
Date : 27th June 2020 Company Secretary C.F.O. C.E.O.
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NOTE 1 . CORPORATE INFORMATION & SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Milkfood Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of
the Indian Companies Act. The registered office of the Company is located at P.O. Bahadurgarh-147021 Distt. Patiala
(Punjab), India. Its shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The Company is primarily engaged in the
manufacture and sale of dairy products. The company has two manufacturing locations, one in the state of Punjab at
Patiala and the other in the state of Uttar Pradesh at Moradabad. The company has one subsidiary which are domiciled
in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Indian Companies Act. The company and its subsidiary together
referred as “the Group”. The activities of subsidiary company are not significant. The expression company used in
succeeding paragraph means Milkfood Limited ( Holding Company).

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation and compliance with Ind AS

(i) The Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) in India and complied with the accounting standards as notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read together with Rule 4A of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, to the extent
applicable, and the presentation requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) These financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on June 27, 2020.

(iii) Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the relevant dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the end of that date. Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

Non- monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

2.2 Current versus non-current classification

All assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non current considering the operating cycle of 12
months.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non –current assets and liabilities respectively.

2.3 Basis of measurement

The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using deemed cost convention and
on an accrual method of accounting, except for defined benefit plans which have been measured at actuarial
valuation as required by relevant Ind ASs.

2.4 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assets or paid to transfer a liabilities in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and / or disclosed in these
financial statement is determined on such a basis.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, which are described as follows ; level I - III

Level I input

Level I input are quoted price in active market for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date, A quoted market in an active market provided the most reliable evidence of fair value and is
used without adjustment to measure fair value whenever available, with limited exception. If an entity hold a position
in a single assets or liabilities and the assets or liabilities is traded in an active market, the fair value of assets or
liabilities held by the entity, even if the market normal daily trading volume is not sufficient to absorb the quantity
held and placing orders to sell the position in a single transaction might affect the quoted price.

Level II input

Level II input are input other than quoted market prices included within level I that are observable for the assets or
liabilities either directly or indirectly.

Level II inputs include:

- quoted price for similarly assets or liabilities in active market.

- quoted price for identical or similar assets or liabilities in market that are not active.

- input other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities , for example –interest rate and
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yield curve observable at commonly quoted interval.

- implied volatilise.

- credit spreads.

- input that are derived principally from or corroborated market data correlation or other means (‘market
corroborated inputs’).

Level III input

Level III inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs are used to measure fair value
to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing for situations in which there is little,
if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date. An entity develops unobservable inputs
using the best information available in the circumstances, which might include the entity’s own data, taking into
account all information about market participant assumptions that is reasonably available.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

2.5 Functional and presentation currency

These Ind AS Financial Statements are prepared in Indian Rupee which is the Company’s functional currency. All
financial information presented in Rupees has been rounded to the nearest lakh.

2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Property, plant and equipment

The Company had applied Ind AS 16 with retrospective effect for all of its property, plant and equipment as at
the transition date, viz., 1 April 2016.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, attributable borrowing cost and any other directly attributable costs of bringing
an asset to working condition and location for its intended use. It also includes the present value of the
expected cost for the decommissioning and removing of an asset and restoring the site after its use, if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, are normally charged to the statements of profit and loss in the period in which the costs
are incurred. Major inspection and overhaul expenditure is capitalized if the recognition criteria are met.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost
is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as
incurred.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is scrapped or otherwise disposed off, the cost and related
deprecation are removed from the books of account and resultant profit or loss, if any, is reflected in statement
of Profit & Loss.

(ii) Capital work in progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in capital work in progress account. At the point when an
asset is capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the cost of construction is transferred
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment. Costs associated with the commissioning of an
asset are capitalised when the asset is available for use but incapable of operating at normal levels until the
period of commissioning has been completed. Cost includes financing cost relating to borrowed funds
attributable to construction.

(iii) Depreciation

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the useful life as prescribed in schedule II of
the Companies Act 2013 on the straight-line method from the date the assets are ready for intended use as
described in para (ii) above. Assets in the course of construction and freehold land are not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

• Buildings 30-60 years
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• Plant and equipments 20 years*

• Furniture and fixtures 8 -10 years

• Vehicles 6 - 10 years ( Instead of 8 – 10 years as prescribed under schedule II)

• Office equipments 3 - 6 years

(Including computer software)

*The management has reassessed the remaining useful life of Plant & Machinery with effect from 1st April
2014 in respect of Plant & Machinery, the company is consistently following the policy of charging depreciation
over 20 years, notwithstanding certification by the Govt. approved valuer (Chartered Engineer) of the useful
life of Plant & Machinery of more than 35 years. This is in pursuance of proviso to sub clause (c) of clause 3
of schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.

Similarly for addition of Plant & Machinery during the year company has estimated the useful life of 20 years
(15 years specified in Schedule II) based upon the certificate of suppliers / manufacturers of Plant & Machinery
obtained in earlier years.

2.7 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. The Company currently does not
have any intangible assets with indefinite useful life. Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates

2.8 Impairment of Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an assets or a
group of assets (cash generating unit) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset or cash generating unit is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any). If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the entity should determine the recoverable
amount of the Cash Generated Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

It is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset if:

• The asset’s Value in use (VIU) cannot be estimated to be close to its fair value less cost to sell(FLVCS).

• The asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. In assessing the value in use,
the estimated future cash flow are discounted at their present value using the pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of time value of money and the risks specific to the assets for which the estimates of
future cash flow have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an assets (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the assets (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the statement of Profit & Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss recognized immediately in the
statement of Profit & Loss.

2.9 Cash and Cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above.

2.10 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contact that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
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(i) Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and Loss.

(ii) Subsequent measurement of financial assets:

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place. All recognised financial
assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets :

The Company derecognises a financial asset when and only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized
in the Statement of Profit and loss on disposal of that financial asset.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised
cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits and trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or
another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

(v) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities:

All the financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method
or at fair value through profit and loss. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

(vi) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such on exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss, net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value except scrap and by products which are valued
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at net realisable value. Costs comprises as follow:

(i) Raw materials: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

(ii) Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis. In pursuance of IND AS-2 indirect production overheads (estimated
by the Management) have been allocated for ascertainment of cost.

(iii) Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(iv) Obsolete inventories are identified and written down to net realisable value. Slow moving and defective
inventories are identified and provided to net realisable value. Inventories (including whey powder - by product)
are valued on lower of cost or net realizable value. In pursuance of IND AS-2 indirect production overheads
(estimated by the Management) have been allocated for ascertainment of cost.

2.13 Retirement Benefits

Company follows IND AS-19 as detailed below:-

(a) Short-term benefits are recognized as expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit & Loss
of the year in which the related service is rendered.

(b) Company provides bonus to eligible employees as per Bonus Act 2016 and accordingly liability is provided on
actual cost at the end of the year.

(c) Provident Fund:

The eligible employees of the company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, a defined
contribution plan in which both employees and the company make monthly contributions at a specified
percentage of the covered employee’s salary. The contributions as specified under the law are paid to the
respective Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the Central Provident Fund under the State Pension
Scheme.

(d) The Company has an obligation towards gratuity a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees.
The plan provides for a lumpsum payment to employees at retirement/determination of service on the basis of
15 days terminal salary for each completed year of service subject to maximum amount of Rs. 20 Lacs.

Company’s liability towards gratuity and compensated absences is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the plan assets (excluding net interest), is
reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income
(OCI) in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognized in the other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognized
in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the period to the defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

• Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost as well as gains and losses on curtailments
and settlements);

• Net interest expense or income; and

• Remeasurement

2.14 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable taking in to account contractually defined terms of payment excluding
others taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. Specific recognition criteria described below must
also be met before revenue is recognized.

(a) Export sales are recognized on the basis of date of bill of lading.

(b) Export entitlements i.e. duty free scrip and duty draw back are accounted for on the basis of export of goods
on FOB value determined for custom purpose.

(c) Conversion charges are recognized on completion of jobs.

(d) Interest Income is recorded on time proportion basis using the effective rate of Interest (EIR).
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2.15 Manufacturing policy

The main raw material of the company is milk, which is used to produce Pure Ghee and various types of Milk
Powders. For the last few years, the company has changed its policy to produce Pure Ghee and Milk Powders which
conforms to the quality standards adopted by the company consistent with its brand image. Quantities of Pure
Ghee and Milk Powders are purchased and processed in the plant to give effect to the manufacturing policy and
produce a product of high quality on consistent basis. Company has utilized its facilities for conversion of Milk to
Ghee / Butter & Milk Powder on job works basis.

2.16 Taxation

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses.

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except:

When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which
case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable.

When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included, the net amount of tax recoverable from,
or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the
form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is
probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

2.17 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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2.18 Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign Currency Transactions involving export sales are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency on the customs
rate on the date of dispatch of goods. The difference between the rates recorded and the rates on the date of actual
realization is transferred to difference in exchange fluctuation account .At the year end, the balances are converted
at the year end rate and difference if any between the book balance and converted amount are transferred to the
exchange fluctuation account. The premium or discount arising at the inception of a forward exchange contract is
amortized as expenses / income over the life of the contract. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of
such a forward contract is recognized as income / expenses for the period. Non-monetary items that are measured
in historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

2.19 Earning per shares

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit and loss
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares

2.20 Segment Reporting

The company is operating under a single segment i.e., “Dairy Products- comprising Ghee, Milk Powder, Casein,
Whey powder and Dairy whitener” and therefore there are no reportable segments as per IND AS-108 “Segment
Reporting” issued under section 133 of Companies Act 2013 read with rules 4A of Companies ( Indian Accounting
Standards) rules 2015.

2.21 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, whereby profit /
(loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past
or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segregated based on the available information

2.22 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company; or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

2.23 Leases

Leases under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. When acquired, such assets are capitalized at fair value or present value of the minimum lease
payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments under operating leases are recognised
as an expense on a straight line basis in the statement of profit and loss over the lease term except where the lease
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation.

2.24 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the
period in which is known/materialised.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are
included in the following notes:

(i) Property, Plant and Equipments –

(ii) Intangible assets -

(iii) Taxes on income -

(iv) Retirement and other employee benefits -
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Consolidated Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended March 31, 2020

A. Equity share capital:
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up (Share of Rs. 10 each)

Particulars No. of shares Rs. In Lakhs

At 31 March 2018 4,886,440 489

Issued during the year - -

At 31 March 2019 4,886,440 489

Issued during the year - -

At 31 March 2020 4,886,440 489

B. Other equity  (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  Reserve & Surplus Total

Retained Securities
Earnings Premium

Balance as at 1st April, 2018 8,660 670 9,330

Profit for the year 1,023 - 1,023

Other comprehensive income for the year (net) (15) - (15)

Balance as at 31st March, 2019 9,668 670 10,338

Profit for the year 839 - 839

Other comprehensive income for the year (net) 1 - 1

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 10,508 670 11,178

The accompanying notes 1 to 41 are integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of Milkfood Ltd
For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 015260N Harmesh Mohan Sood Asha Gadi Anil Girotra

Director Director Director
SARTHAK MADAAN 07951620 00110734 00110631
Partner
Membership No.: 547131
Place : New Delhi Rakesh Thakur Sanjeev Kothiala Sudhir Avasthi
Date : 27th June 2020 Company Secretary C.F.O. C.E.O.
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Consolidated Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

3. Property, plant and equipment
A. Tangible Assets (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Land Building Furniture & Computers & Vehicles Plant & Total
 Fixtures * Pheripherals Equipment

(I) At cost or deemed cost
As at 1 April 2018 7948 2875 102 105 793 5,675 17,498
Additions - 72 7 5 205 732 1,021
Disposals - - - - 75 35 110

As at 31 March 2019 7,948 2,947 109 110 923 6,372 18,409

Additions 183 347 4 6 298 1,379 2,217
Disposals - - - - 186 8 194

As at 31 March 2020 8,131 3,294 113 116 1,034 7,744 20,432

(II) Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2018 - 218 17 12 277 642 1,166
Charge for the year - 133 9 11 187 343 683
Deductions - - - - 38 23 61

As at 31 March 2019 - 351 26 23 426 962 1,789

Charge for the year - 139 10 12 148 389 698
Deductions - - - - 145 1 146

As at 31 March 2020 - 490 37 35 429 1,350 2,341

Net block Value (I) - (II)
As at 31 March 2020 8,131 2,804 76 81 605 6,394 18,091
As at 31 March 2019 7,948 2,596 83 87 497 5,411 16,621

(B) Capital work in progress:

As at 31 March, 2020 163

As at 31 March, 2019 173

(C) Right of use

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Balance as at beginning of the year - -
Recognised on account of adoption of IND AS 116 (Leases) in respect of building. 279 -
Additions - -
Deletion - -
Depreciation 113 -

Balance as at end of the year 166 -

Footnotes:
(i) For details of Property, plant and equipment charged as security of borrowings. Refer Note 16.
(ii) Estimated amount of capital contracts remaining to be executed is Rs. 56 Lakhs (Year 2019 Rs. 225 Lakhs)
(iii) * includes office equipments.
(iv) Term Loan interest of Rs. 35.69 Lakhs, Salary & consultancy of Rs. 25 Lakhs has been capitalized in Plant & Machinery

during the year.
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Note 4 Biological assets

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Trees & Plantation 230 219

Total 230 219

Footnotes:
Categorized as biological asset on the basis of certificate of agricultural scientist that trees have attained sufficient growth for
sale and net realisable value is not less than the carrying amount as per Ind AS - 41.

Note 5. Financial assets - Investment

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

National saving certificates / Deposits (i) 2 1

Total 2 1

Footnotes:
(i) Pledged with government authorities towards fulfillment of statutory obligations.

Note 6. Trade receivable

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 3,304 2,199
Doubtful 28 19

3,332 2,218

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 28 9

3,304 2,209
Net Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 3,304 2,199
Doubtful - 10

3,304 2,209

Current 3,286 2,199
Non-current (ii) 18 10

Footnotes:
(i) In view of insignifcant amount of bad debts and timely recovery in earlier years, allowance for expected credit loss is made

on the simlified approach of provision based in earlier years.
(ii) Current year figure represent due from Canteen Stores Department outstanding for more than one year. Management is

of the view that this amount is good for recovery and will be recovered in F.Y. 2020-21. Hence no provision is made.
(iii) No trade receivables are due from directors and other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other

person, or from firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
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Note 7. Deposits, loan & advances

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good (i) 92 113

(b) Loans and advances to employees (ii) 14 3
Unsecured, considered good

Total 106 116

Footnotes:
(i) Includes Rs 73 Lakhs with Govt departments and are shown at carrying amount. In respect of security deposits with non

Govt. departments of Rs 19 Lakhs given to various parties, fair value has not been computed in view of insignificant effect.
Further these amounts are considered good for recovery as certified by the management.

(ii) Considered good for recovery as certified by the management.

Note 8. Other non current assets

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Prepaid expenses 14 23
(b) Capital advances 21 36
(c) Deposit with sales tax authorities (i) 84 81
(d) MAT credit receivable (ii) 837 322
(e) Others receivable (iii) 6 6

Total 962 468

Footnotes:
(i) Deposits with Sales Tax Authorities amounting to Rs. 81 Lakhs represent the amount deposited as a pre-condition for

preferring appeal. Management, based upon the legal advice, is of the view that appeals will be decided in favour of
company and hence are recoverable.

(ii) MAT credit of Rs. 515 Lakhs (Rs. 302 Lakhs pertaining to previous year) is recognised during the year u/s 115JB of the
Income Tax Act.

(iii) Represent Insurance claim receivable, considered good for recovery by the management.

Note 9. Inventories

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Raw materials 32 15
(b) Work-in-progress 599 970
(c ) Finished goods 4,679 5,053
(d) Stores and spares 355 491
(e) Packing materials (i) 192 280

Total 5,857 6,809

Footnotes:
(i) Includes non moving / slow moving stock of Packing material of Rs 10 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs.45 Lakhs). Management is of the

view that the non moving stock will be utilised / disposed off in the financial year 2020-21. Adjustment if any shall be made
in the subsequent year.

(ii) For details of inventories provided as security for borrowings. Refer Note 19.
(iii) The mode of valuation of inventories has been described in Note 2.12.
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Note 10. Loan

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Loan to employees / others
(Unsecured, considered good) (i) 33 79

Total 33 79

Footnotes:
(i) Loan to employees/others (including static balance of Rs.11 lakhs) are considered good for recovery within 12 months of

reporting date as certified by the management.

Note 11. Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Cash on hand 6 2
(b) Balances with banks

(i) In current accounts 2 6
(ii) In deposit accounts - 2
(iii)Margin accounts (i) 347 451

Total 355 461

Footnotes:
(i) Towards bank guarantee given to govt. departments/corporations for performance obligations. Management is of view that

amount is recoverable.

Note 12. Financial Assets - others

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Interest receivable 11 13
(b) Others receivable 3 1
(c) Milk processing receivable (i) 91 -

Total 105 14

Footnotes:
(i) Represent job work executed pending dispatch.

Note 13. Other current assets

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Prepaid expenses - unsecured, considered good 81 75
(b) Advance to suppliers - unsecured, considered good (i) 147 470
(c) Balances with statutory / government authorities (ii) 295 485
(d) Income tax refund (iii) 17 17
(e) Earnest money deposit with Govt. Department 60 40

Total 600 1,087

Footnotes:
(i) Includes amount of Rs. 114 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 114 Lakhs) due from supplier from earlier years against supplies to the

company. Amount is confirmed by the supplier and in the opinion of managment will be adjusted / recovered in F.Y. 2020-
21. It also includes Rs.16 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 12 Lakhs) from Ispace Developers Private Limited. No interest is charged as the
property of Ispace Developers Private Limited is kept as security with the bank.
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(ii) Represent GST input credit (net).
(iii) Refund of Rs.16.29 Lakhs is adjusted by the department against demand of AY 2007-08 which has not been cancelled

due to non credit of Appeal effect of CIT(A) order. Company has filed a letter with IT Department asking for refund.

Note 14. Share capital

Particulars As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

Number of (Rs. in Number of (Rs. in
shares Lakhs) shares Lakhs)

(a) Authorised
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 7,500,000 750 7,500,000 750
Cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs. 100 each 50,000 50 50,000 50

Total 7,550,000 800 7,550,000 800

(b) Issued
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 4,887,890 489 4,887,890 489

(c) Subscribed and Paid up
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 4,886,440 489 4,886,440 489
Less: Calls in arrears 0 0

(Rs.0.19 lakhs on 2875 partly paid shares ) 4,886,440 489 4,886,440 489
Add :Amount paid on forfeited shares 0 0
(Rs.0.07 lakhs on 1450 shares )

Total 4,886,440 489 4,886,440 489

(d) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount
outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year :
At the beginning of the year 4,886,440 489 4,886,440 489
Issued during the year - - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 4,886,440 489 4,886,440 489

Footnotes:
(i) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is

eligible for one vote per share.
(ii) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the

company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

(iii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

Number of Percentage of Number of Percentage of
shares held shares held shares held shares held

Equity shares

Mr. Karamjit Jaiswal 1,700,024 34.79% 1,700,024 34.79%

Ms Roshini Sanah Jaiswal 700,060 14.33% 700,060 14.33%

Dhanvani Investment Pvt. Ltd. 560,861 11.48% 560,861 11.48%

Sudha Commercial Co. Ltd. 489,103 10.01% 489,103 10.01%

Jupiter India Fund 317,434 6.50% 265,695 5.44%
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Note 15. Other equity

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Securities premium (i) 670 670
(b) Retained earnings (ii) 10,508 9,668

Total 11,178 10,338

Footnotes:
(i) Where the Company issues shares at premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of

the premium received on those shares is transferred to “Securities Premium account”. The company may issue fully paid-
up bonus shares to its members out of balance lying in the securites premium account and the company can also use the
premium for buy-back of shares.

(ii) Includes revaluation reserve of Rs. 5,286 Lakhs (PY Rs. 5,327 Lakhs) [Net of increase in value of Land & Building of Rs
8,530 Lakhs and decrease in the value of Plant & Machinery of Rs 3,080 Lakhs as at 01.04.2016 after adjusting accumulated
depreciation of Rs. 164 Lakhs (PY Rs. 123 Lakhs) on revalued figure].

(iii) The disaggregation of changes in each type of reserve, retained earnings and other comprehensive income are disclosed
in Statement of Changes in Equity.

(iv) Profit of non controling interest is insignificant due to wholly owned subsidiary

Note 16. Long-term borrowings

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) From Banks: Secured at amortised cost
Rupee term loan 688 582

Total (a) 688 582

(b) From Banks: Unsecured at amortised cost
Rupee term loan 50 61

Total (b) 50 61

(c) From Others: Secured at amortised cost
Vehicle loan 136 145

Total (c) 136 145

(d) From Others-Unsecured at amortised cost
Rupee term loan 290 148

Total (d) 290 148

Grand Total (a+ b+c+d) 1,163 936

Less: Unamortised finance cost 1 3

1,162 933
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Footnotes:-

(i) Detail of loans:

Non Current Current Maturity Total

a) From Banks: Secured at amortised cost
Canara Bank @ 11.55% to 13.55% p.a. payable by May 2022 534 480 1,014

(274) (156) (430)
SBI @ 11.55% p.a. payable by Jun 2021 51 260 311

(308) (266) (574)
b) From Banks: Unsecured at amortised cost

IDFC First Bank Ltd 61 30 91
@15.50% p.a payable by Apr,2021 - - -
ICICI Bank Ltd 23 24 47
@ 8.97% p.a payable by Jan ,2022 - - -
HDFC Bank Ltd 18 24 43
@ 15.50% p.a payable by Nov ,2021 - - -
Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd @15% p.a. payable by April 2021 50 100 150

(61) (149) (210)
c) From Others: Secured at amortised cost

NBFC @ 8.39% to 10.06% p.a. payable by Feb 2023 136 208 344
(145) (172) (317)

d) From Others-Unsecured at amortised cost
NBFC @ 15.50% to 18% payable by July 2022. 290 233 522

(148) (60) (208)

Total 1,163 1,358 2,522
(936) (803) (1,739)

Figures in bracket relates to the previous year.

(ii) The Loan of Canara Bank of Rs. 15.60 Crores (As per MCA 21) is secured by an exclusive charge on fixed assets to the
extent of Rs.19.50 Crores and on pari-passu basis with State Bank of India on balance fixed assets including equitable
morgage of Land and Building by deposit of title deed in respect of Patiala and Moradabad Plants.

Note 17. Financial liabilities - others

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Security deposits (i) 6,107 5,826
(b) Other payable (ii) 1 1

Total 6,108 5,827

Footnotes:
(i) Security deposits of Rs. 6105 lakhs are confirmed by the management and consignees/suppliers and are payable on

demand after 31.03.2021.
(ii) Payable to ex-employee pending final decision of court.

Note 17A . Financial liabilities - other

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Lease Liabilities -( current ) 115 -
Lease Liabilities -( non current) 61 -
[In respect of building taken on lease (Refer note 39 & 2.23)]

Total 175 -
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Note 18. Provisions
(A) Non current

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity 184 179
Compensated absences 22 28

Total 206 207

(B) Current

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity 109 79
Compensated absences 21 15

Total 130 94

Footnotes:
Provision for Gratuity and compensated absences have been made in terms of IND AS-19.(Refer note no. 33).

Note 19. Financial liabilities - short -term borrowings

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

From bank - secured
Cash credit (i) 4,888 4,157

Total 4,888 4,157

Footnotes:
(i) Cash Credit sanctioned by State Bank of India/Canara Bank are secured by charge on pari passu basis on all present &

future current assets (excluding vehicles) including stocks and book debts and extension of charge on pari-passu basis
on the fixed assets of the company, equitable mortgage of land & building at Gurgoan owned by Ispace Developers Private
Limited and exclusive charge on company’s Brand “MILKFOOD”.

Note 20. Financial liabilities - Trade payable

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (i) 38 -
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than above 3,106 4,448

Total 3,144 4,448

Footnote:
(i) This information as required to be disclosed under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 has been

determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. As per
information given dues of MSME suppliers are paid within the stipulated time and hence no provision for interest is made.
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Note 21. Other financial liabilities - current

Particulars Footnote As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Current maturities of long term debts (i) 1,356 799
(b) Public deposits with interest (ii) 7 7
(c) Outstanding expenses including salary & wages etc. (iii) 125 165
(d) Others 12 9

Total 1,500 980

Footnotes:
(i) Net of unamortised finance cost of Rs. 2 Lakhs (P.Y.Rs 4). Refer Note No.16
(ii) Includes Rs.1.50 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 1.65 Lakhs) towards principal amount and Rs. 5.19 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 5.46 Lakhs) towards

interest in respect of unclaimed matured deposits.
(iii) Includes rent payable for earlier years of Rs. 2.82 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 2.82 Lakhs) pending court case.

Note 22. Other current liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Statutory remittances (Contributions to PF and ESIC, Withholding Taxes, etc.) 52 75
(b) Advances from customers 58 65

Total 110 140

Note 23. Revenue from operations

Particulars Footnote For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Sale of products (i) 54,066 52,401
(b) Other operating revenues (ii) 1,075 658

Revenue from operations 55,141 53,059

Footnotes:

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(i) Sale of products comprises:
- Ghee 53,901 52,174
- Milk powder 165 227

Total - Sale of products 54,066 52,402

(ii) Other operating revenues comprises:
Sale of scrap 30 41
Conversion charges of milk to powder & butter 1,045 617

Total - Other operating revenues 1075 658
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Note 24. Other income

Particulars Footnote For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Interest income on bank deposit 26 23
(b) Interest on refund of taxes - 2
(c) Others (i) 23 6
(d) Profit on sale of assets 12 -

Total 61 31

Footnotes:
(i) Includes an amount of Rs. 21 Lakhs ( P.Y. Rs.Nil ) written back in respect of liabilities no longer required.

Note 25. Cost of material consumed

Particulars Footnote For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Raw materials
Inventories at the beginning of the year 15 16
Add: Purchases 46051 43814
Less: Inventories at the end of the year 32 15

Consumption (a) (i) 46034 43815

(b) Packing materials
Inventories at the beginning of the year 280 232
Add: Purchases 1083 1411
Less: Inventories at the end of the year 192 280

Consumption(b) 1171 1363

Total (a+b) 47205 45178

Footnotes:

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(i) Raw material consumed comprises:
Milk 547 1,048
Fat & butter 45,473 42,678
Milk powder 13 80
Others 2 9

Total 46,034 43,815
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Note 26. Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods 4,679 5,053
Work-in-progress 599 970

5,278 6,023
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods 5,053 4,982
Work-in-progress 970 1,692

6,023 6,674

Net (increase) / decrease 745 651

Note 27 Employee benefit expenses

Particulars Footnote For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Salaries, wages and other benefits (i) 1884 1833
(b) Contributions to provident funds / ESI 107 86
(c) Gratuity & compensated absences (ii) 48 47
(d) Staff welfare expenses 46 51

Total 2085 2017

Footnotes:
(i) (a) Includes bonus of Rs. 37.37 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 26.10 Lakhs) under the payment of Bonus Act 2015.

(b) Net of recovery of Rs. 396 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. Nil ) from KMP.
(ii) Provision for Gratuity and compensated absences have been made during the year in terms of IND AS-19 (Refer note no.

35).

Note 28. Finance costs

Particulars Footnote For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Interest expense
on term loan 244 234
on Cash Credit 503 499
on late deposit of income tax 8 -
on lease liabilities (ROU) 25 -

(b) Other borrowing costs (Bank and other financing charges) (i) 60 55

Total 840 788

Footnotes:
(i) Net of recovery of interest of Rs. 12 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. Nil).
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Note 29. Depreciation & amortisation expenses

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note no. 2 and 3A.) 698 683
b) Amortisation of right-of-use assets (Refer Note 3C & 2.23) 113 -

Total 811 683

Note 30. Other expenses

Particulars Footnote For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Consumption of stores and spare parts 66 81
Power and fuel 944 684
Repairs and maintenance:
- Building 16 6
- Machinery 66 60
Inventory written off 37 49
Freight & forwarding expenses 376 375
Commission 135 39
Selling & distribution expenses 48 84
Advertisment expenses 33 59
Rates and taxes 47 64
Rent 59 170
Auditors remuneration (i) 14 12
Office maintenance & house keeping 172 144
Legal & professional 122 96
Insurance expenses 74 65
Travelling & hotel expenses 86 72
Vehicle expenses 60 66
Watch & ward expenses 36 30
Postage & telephone expenses 23 22
Provision for doubtful debts 19 9
Net loss on sale of property , plant & equipment - 17
Contribution for corporate social responsibility (CSR) (ii) 15 7
Miscellaneous expenses (ii) 192 226

Total 2639 2437

Footnote:

(i) Auditors remuneration

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

- Audit fee 12 12
- Certification 1 -
- Reimbursement of expenses 1 2

Total 14 14

(ii) Amount required for CSR contributed to PM Cares Fund.
(iii) Includes Sundry expenses of Rs.17 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 19 lakhs), Printing stationery Rs. 8 Lakh (P.Y. Rs. 9 lakh), Guest house

expenses Rs. 9 Lakh (P.Y. Rs. 5 lakh) and Income Tax others Rs. 39.94 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 39.59 Lakhs).



98

Note 31 (A). Current tax liabilities (net)

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Current tax liabilities (net of advance tax of Rs. 230 lakhs and TDS of Rs. 15 lakhs) - 50

Total - 50

Note 31 (B). Current tax assets (net)

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Current tax assets (net of tax provision of Rs. 213 lakhs) 43 -

Total 43 -

Note 31 (C) Tax expenses

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Income tax related to items charged or credited
to statement of profit and loss during the year:
(a) Statement of profit and loss

Current tax 213 295
Earlier year tax Expenses 7 17
MAT credit (515) (322)
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 333 323

Total 38 313

(b) Other comprehensive income
Deferred tax charge/(credit) on
Re-measurement of defined benefit plan 1 (7)

Total 39 306

Reconciliation of tax expense with accounting
profit multiplied by statutory income tax rate:
Accounting profit before income tax 877 1,337
Applicable tax rate 33.38% 33.38%
Computed tax expenses 293 446
Effect of prior period adjustments in deferred tax 11 (146)
Adjustment recognised in current year in relation to tax of prior year 7 17
Income recognised related to MAT credit (Net) (302) (27)
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes
Other non-deductible expenses 20 25
Others including differential rate of tax (MAT) 10 (10)

Income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss account 39 306
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Note 31 (D) Deferred tax  (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31 March, 2020

As at Recognised in As at 31

01 April, 2019 Profit & Loss OCI March, 2020

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
Property, plant and equipment 1,008 109 - 1,117
Others - 56 - 56

(A) 1,008 164 - 1,172

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Carried forward loss / unabsorbed depreciation 308 248 - 60
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 101 (12) 1 112
Disallowances under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 5 (1) - 6
Provision for doubtful debts - (9) 9
Others - (59) - 59

(B) 414 167 1 246

Deferred tax liability (net) 594 331 1 926

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31 March, 2019

As at Recognised in As at 31

01 April, 2018 Profit & Loss OCI March, 2019

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
Property, plant and equipment 1,187 (179) - 1,008
Others - - - -

(A) 1,187 (179) - 1,008

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Carried forward loss / Unabsorbed depreciation 820 512 - 308
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 88 (14) - 101
Disallowances under Section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 - (2) - 2
Others - (3) - 3

(B) 908 493 - 414

Deferred tax liability (net) 279 314 - 594

Footnote:
(i) Revaluation impact in Land & Building is not considered for computing deferred tax.

Note 32. Earnings per share

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Basic and diluted
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs. in Lakhs) 839 1023
Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos.) 4,886,440 4,886,440
Par value per share ( In Rs.) 10 10
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (in Rs.) 17.15 20.92
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Note 33. Related party disclosures
(A) Details of related parties with whom the company had transactions during the year.

Description of relationship Names of related parties

(a) Enterprises over which KMP, major shareholder Jagatjit Industries Ltd., Pashupati Properties P.Ltd,
is able to exercise significant influence Anjani Estate P.Ltd, Mata Construction & Builders P.Ltd

& Ispace Developers Pvt.Ltd
MFL Trading Pvt Ltd (Wholly owned subsidiary Company)

(b) Key Management Personnel (CEO/CFO/Company Mr Karamjit Jaiswal
Secretery/Directors and their relatives) Ms Roshini Sanah Jaiswal

Mr Sudhir Avasthi (CEO)
Ms Gita Bawa (Independent Director)
Ms Asha Gadi (Independent Director)
Mr Anil Girotra (Independent Director)
Mr Kewal Krishan Kohli (Independent Director)
Mr Lalit Kumar (Director)
Mr Harmesh Mohan Sood (Director)
Mr Sanjeev Kothiala (CFO)
Mr Rakesh K Thakur (CS)

(B) Transactions with related parties during the year along with balances as at year end:

Particulars With Persons With Persons Total
Mentioned in Mentioned in (Rs. in

(a) above (b) above Lakhs)
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Electricity expenses paid 13 - 13
(11) - (11)

Rent (Lease liabilities including interest paid) 76 - 76
(53) - (53)

Advance for Rent & Building Renovation 100 - 100
- - -

Reimbursement of other expenses/ Building Renovation 62 - 62
- - -

Services provided / Interest Income (Refer note 28(i)) - 12 12
(52) - (52)

Sales 12 - 12
(21) - (21)

Loan given - - -
(55) - (55)

Loan repayment - - -
(47) - (47)

Managerial Remuneration {(including sitting fees) - 581 581
Refer note 27(i)(b)}

- (660) (660)
Amount receivable 50 - 50

(57) - (57)

Footnote:
(i) No amounts have been written off / provided for or written back during the year in respect of amounts receivable from or

payable to related parties.
(ii) Related parties have been identified by the management.
(iii) Rent (lease liability including interest) is certified by the the management as per prevelant market rates and for business

purposes of the company.
(iv) Figures in bracket relates to the previous year.
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Note 34. Contingent liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts*
Sales tax 71 116

Footnotes:
(i) *The company is contesting these demands and the management, based on advise of its advisors, believes that its

position will likely be upheld in the appellate process. No expense has accrued in the standalone financial statements for
these demands raised. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material
adverse effect on the company’s financial position and results of operations. The company does not expect any
reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

(ii) In addition, the company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business.
The company’s management reasonably does not expect that these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and
determined, will have material effect on the company’s results of operations or financial condition.

Note 35. Employee benefits
(A) Defined contribution plans

The company has recognised the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Employers’ contribution to provident fund and family pension fund 101 80

(B) Defined benefit plans

The company operates on one defined benefit plan i.e., gratuity for its employees including Key managerial personnel
except Mr Karamjit Singh Jaiswal and Ms Roshini Sanah Jaiswal. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has
completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed
year of service subject to maximum of Rs. 20 lakhs .

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss:
Under profit and loss section
Current service cost 26 21
Net interest cost 19 16
Past service cost - -

45 37
Under other comprehensive income section
Acturial (gains)/losses
Due to experience adjustments (11) 23
Due to change in assumption 9 (1)

(2) 22
(b) Net liabilities recognised in the balance sheet

Present value of obligation 293 258
Fair value of plant assets -

Funded status (deficit) 293 258

Net liabilities recognised in the balance sheet accounted for as below:
Provision non current (refer note 18 A) 184 179
Provision current (refer note 18 B) 109 79
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Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended

31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

(c) Present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of obligation at the beginning of year 258 225
Current cost 26 21
Interest cost 19 16
Remeasurement due to

Acturial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience changes (11) 23
Acturial loss/(gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 9 (1)

Past service cost - -
Benefits paid (9) (26)

Present value of defined obligation at the end of the year 293 258

(d) The principal assumptions used in
determing defined benefit obligations:
Discount rate 7.60% 7.52%
Salary increase rate 3.5% to 5% 3.5% to 5%
Attrition rate 5% 5%
Mortality Table IAL 2012-14 IAL 2012-14

Ultimate Ultimate

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

(e) Sensitivity analysis:

For the year ended 31 March, 2020

1% increase 1% decrease

Discount rate (10) (11)
Salary increase rate 11 10
Employee attrition rate 1 1

For the year ended 31 March, 2019

1% increase 1% decrease

Discount rate (9) 9
Salary increase rate 10 (9)
Employee turnover 1 (1)

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable change in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Note: 36. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the company’s operations. The company’s principal financial assets include, trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, bank balances and security deposits that are out of regular business operations.

The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument that will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk i.e. interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as
commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings and trade payables.

i. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate
relates primarily to the company’s borrowings with floating interest rates.
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on borrowings
affected. With all other variables held constant, the company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on
floating rate borrowings, as follows:

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease

Impact on profit before tax (64) 64 (63) 63

ii. Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. There does not seem to be any significant risk as transaction in foreign currency
are very few.

As there is no significant foreign currency risk, sensitivity analysis showing impact on profit is not calculated.

iii. Commodity price risk

The company does not have significant risk in raw material price variations. In case of any variation in price, the same
is passed on to customers through appropriate adjustment to selling prices.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty default on its obligations.
The company’s exposure to credit risk arises majorly from trade and other receivables. Other financial assets like security
deposits and bank deposits are mostly with government authorities and nationalised banks and hence, the company does
not expect any credit risk with respect to these financial assets. Trade receivables in respect of sale of ghee , in majority
of cases payment is received in advance and with respect to skimmed milk powder , the sale is institutional and expected
credit loss is too low considering the past record.

(c) Liquidity risk

The company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
borrowings and security from consignment agents. The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company’s
financial liabilities:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Maturities

Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-4 years Total

31-Mar-20
Non-current borrowings - 951 212 1,163
Current borrowings* 4,888 - - 4,888
Trade payables 3,144 - - 3,144
Other financial liabilities** 1,500 6,108 - 7,609

Total 9,532 7,059 212 16,804

31-Mar-19
Non-current borrowings - 647 289 936
Current borrowings* 4,157 - - 4,157
Trade payables 4,448 - - 4,448
Other financial liabilities** 980 5,827 - 6,807

Total 9,586 6,474 289 16,349

* Current borrowings represent working capital loan (Cash credit).
** Includes security deposit taken from supplier and consignment agent which is payable on demand but beyond 12
months from the reporting date as certified by the management and confirmed by the suppliers and consignees.

Note: 37. Capital management
For the purpose of the company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders. The primary objective of the company’s capital management is to
ensure that it maintains a good credit rating and capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. The company includes within net
debt, all non-current and current borrowings reduced by cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances.
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Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Non-current borrowings 1,162 933
Current maturities of non-current borrowings 1,363 806
Current borrowings 4,888 4,157
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 355 461

Net debt 7,059 5,434

Equity share capital 489 489
Other equity 11,178 10,340

Total capital 11,667 10,829

Gearing ratio 61% 50%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it
meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing borrowings that define capital structure requirements. The breaches
in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any interest-bearing borrowings in the current year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2020
and March 31, 2019.

Note 38. Fair value
Fair value measurement:

(i) All the financial assets and financial liabilities of the company are carried at amortised cost.

(ii) The management assessed that the carrying values of trade and other receivables, deposit, cash and short term deposits,
other assets, borrowings, trade and other payables reasonably approximate their fair values because these instruments
have short-term maturities.

(iii) It is view of the management that fair value impact of long term security deposits/loan paid or payable would not be
material.

Note 39.
Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases”, applied to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019
using the modified retrospective method. Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been
retrospectively adjusted. On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of Right-of-Use asset (ROU) of
Rs. 279.06 Lakhs and a corresponding lease liability of Rs. 279.06 Lakhs. The effect of this adoption has decreased PAT by Rs.
9.66 Lacs and EPS by INR 0.20 per share. The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term
leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Note 40.
The outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activities globally. The
nationwide lockdown ordered by the Government of India has resulted in further slow down in economic activities and also the
business operations of the Company in terms of sales and production. The management has considered the possible effects
that may result from the pandemic on the recoverability/carrying value of the assets. Based on the current indicators of future
economic conditions and company engaged in dairy business (essential services), the management expects to recover the
carrying amount of the assets, however the management will and continue to closely monitor any material changes to future
economic conditions. Given the uncertainties, the final impact on Company’s assets in future may differ from that estimated as
at the date of approval of these financial results.

Note 41.
Previous year figures have been reclassified/regrouped wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of current
period.






